
TOWN OF HANNA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
June 8, 2021 

 
 
1 CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 pm   
 
 
2 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
 
3 DELEGATIONS 

 
 

4 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  
 
 

5 ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
  

5.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – May 11, 2021 
5.2 Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council – May 26, 2021 
5.3 Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council – May 26, 2021 

 
 

6 FINANCE REPORTS 
 

6.1 Accounts Payable 
6.2 Statement of Revenues & Expenses – May 2021 
6.3 Budget Overview – May 2021 

 
 

7 COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
8 SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS’ REPORTS 
 

8.1 Chief Administrative Officer 
8.2 Director of Business & Communication 
8.3 Director of Community Services  
8.4 Director of Protective Services  
8.5 Director of Public Works 

 
 
 
  



Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 8, 2021    Page….2 

9 BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
9.01 Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development 

Appeal Board – Appointment 
9.02 Council Code of Conduct – Complaint 
9.03 Coal Development – Eastern Slopes 
9.04 Covid-19 Operating Plan Update  

 
 
10 BYLAWS 

 
10.00 Joint Public Hearing – Scheduled for 7:00 p.m. 
10.01 Bylaw 1016-2021 – Land Use Bylaw Amendment  
10.02 Bylaw 1017-2021 – Municipal Development Plan Amendment  
 

 
11 COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 

 
 

12 CORRESPONDENCE ITEMS 
 

12.01 Minister of Municipal Affairs –  
Town of Hanna 2021 MSI Funding Letter 

 12.02 Alberta Japan Twinned Municipalities Association –  
2021 Invoice & Save the Date 

12.03 Village of Rycroft – Minister of Justice – Support for RCMP Police 
Service – May 21 

 12.04 Cactus Corridor Newsletter 2021 05 
12.05 Town of Falher – Letter of Support for RCMP  
12.06 Town of Mayerthrope – Letter of Support for RCMP 
12.07 AUMA Towns South Update 
12.08 Marigold Library Systems Report 
12.09 Marigold Library Systems Hanna Municipal Library – 2020 Value 

of Your Investment  
12.10 Marigold Library Systems – 2020 Annual Report  
12.11 Marigold Library Systems – New Building Update 
12.12 Prairie Land School Division – Board Highlights May 25, 2021 
12.13 Smokey Lake County – Letter of Support for RCMP 
12.14 ID 9 – Letter of Support for RCMP 
12.15 Stand with Asians Coalition – Action to Commemorate the 215 

First Nations Children 
12.16 Alberta Visitor Information Program Discontinuation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda – June 8, 2021    Page….3 

13 CLOSED SESSION  
  

13.01 Land Matter 
13.02 Land Matter   
 
 

14 ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 5.00 
 

Item Title 
 

Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held May 11, 2021 be adopted as presented.  
 
That the Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held May 26, 2021 be adopted as presented.  
 
That the Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council held May 26, 2021 be adopted as presented.  
 

Background 
 
Administration at each Regular Council Meeting will provide Council with the minutes of any Council 
meetings held since the previous regular council meeting.  Council must adopt the minutes of the 
meeting, either as presented or with amendments.  
  
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any item in the Minutes. 
 

Communications 
 
The minutes of the meetings of Council are available for review at the office and on the Town website.   
The highlights of the minutes may be communicated through the Town of Hanna Social Media 
programs. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
As required by the Municipal Government Act, once adopted, the Minutes will be signed by the 
presiding officer and a designated officer.  The Minutes will then be placed in the vault for safekeeping. 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\05.00 meeting minutes.docx 

 
 

Attachments 
 
1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – May 11, 2021. 
2. Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council – May 26, 2021. 
3. Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council – May 26, 2021. 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
116-2021 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page... 047: 
 

TOWN OF HANNA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MAY 11, 2021 
 

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Hanna held Tuesday, 
May 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. through video conference.   
 
Councillors Present: 
 Mayor Chris Warwick 
 Sandra Beaudoin 
 Gerald Campion 
 Connie Deadlock  
 Melanie Jensen   
 Kyle Olsen 
 Larry Stickel  
 
Administration Present: 

Kim Neill – Chief Administrative Officer  
Rhonda Lund – Director of Corporate Services 
Laurie Armstrong – Director of Business & Communication   
Gwen Snell – Director of Community Services 
Adrian Mohl – Director of Protective Services 
Brent Olesen – Director of Public Works  

 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Chris Warwick called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
 
2.0 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that the agenda for the May 11, 2021 Regular 
Council Meeting be adopted as presented. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
3.0 DELEGATIONS 
 
 
4.0 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  
 
The Chief Administrative Officer confirmed that Mr. Cory Ashley requested to 
speak with Council and has been given the necessary information to do so for this 
meeting but has not joined at this time.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
117-2021 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
118-2021 
Information 
Meeting Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
119-2021 
Accounts Payable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
120-2021 
Statement of 
Revenue & 
Expense 
 
 
 
 
121-2021 
Budget Overview 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11, 2021 
Page   048: 
 
 
Mayor Warwick stated that the meeting would proceed until Mr. Ashley joined the 
meeting at which time he can address Council.  
 
 
5.0 ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

5.01 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – April 13, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council 
held April 13, 2021 be adopted as presented. 
    Motion Carried. 
 

5.02 Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council – April 28, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that the Minutes of the Information Meeting of Council 
held April 28, 2021 be adopted as presented. 
    Motion Carried 
 
 
6.0 FINANCE REPORTS  
 
 6.01 Accounts Payable  
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council accepts the Accounts Payable cheque 
listings for general account cheques 41598 – 41646 and direct deposit payments 
000230 – 000276 for information. 
   Motion Carried.  
 

6.02 Statement of Revenue & Expense – April 2021 
 

Moved by Councillor Deadlock that Council accepts the Statement of Revenue & 
Expense Report for April 2021 for information. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 6.03 Budget Overview – April 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that Council accepts the Budget Overview for April 
2021 for information. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
122-2021 
Committee Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11: 2021 
Page   049: 
 
 
7.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

7.01 Community Services Board   
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that Council accepts the Community Services Board 
Meeting Minutes for April 26, 2021 for information.  
 
   Motion Carried.  
 
 
4.0 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  
 
Mr. Cory Ashley joined the meeting at 6:06 p.m. 
 
Mayor Warwick welcomed Mr. Ashley to the meeting and invited him to speak with 
Council.   The Mayor stated that it is a public meeting, which is being recorded and 
will be available on youtube.   
 
Mr. Ashley spoke with Council regarding his concerns about people being bullied 
in Hanna, both online and in person.   Mr. Ashley stated that he feels he has been 
bullied by a number of people, including Councillor Olsen which is disrespectful 
and against the Council Code of Conduct bylaw.   Mr. Ashley agreed that Terry 
Johnston had not provided adequate evidence of inappropriate conduct by 
Councillor Olsen in her letter discussed at the April 13 Council meeting but stated 
he would be supplying evidence in that regard.   Mr. Ashley stated that the anti-
bullying bylaw has never been enforced in Hanna.   
    
Mayor Warwick thanked Mr. Ashley for his presentation and confirmed that Council 
would not be making any decision at this meeting regarding the allegations against 
Councillor Olsen as the evidence has not been provided.   
 
Mr. Ashley left the meeting at 6:26 p.m. 
 
 
8.0 SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS REPORTS 
 

8.01 Chief Administrative Officer 
8.02 Director of Business & Communication  

 8.03 Director of Community Services 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
123-2021 
SAO Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
124-2021 
2021 Operating & 
Capital Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
125-2021 
SDAB  
Appointment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
126-2021 
Covid-19  
Operating Plan 
Update 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11: 2021 
Page   050: 
 
 
 8.04 Director of Protective Services 
 8.05 Director of Public Works 
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that the Senior Administrative Officials reports 8.1 to 
8.5 be accepted as presented for information. 
   Motion Carried.  
 
 
9.0 BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
 9.01 2021 Spring Budget Adjustments 
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that  
 Whereas Council approved the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget for the 

Town of Hanna at the December 8, 2020 Council Meeting, and  
 Whereas adjustments to the adopted budget are required for various 

reasons prior to setting the 2021 Tax Rates, and  
 Whereas the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget has been adjusted to 

reflect a 0% change to the tax rate and a draw from surplus in the amount 
of $67,371 

Therefore, Council adopts the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget dated May 11, 
2021 as amended by the Spring Budget Adjustments; and accepts the 2022 & 
2023 Operating Budgets and the 2022 – 2025 Capital Budget for information. 
 
    Motion Carried.   
 
 9.02 Subdivision & Development Appeal Board – Appointment  
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council appoints Mr. Todd Wallace to the Palliser 
Intermunicipal Subdivision & Development Appeal Board for a three year term 
ending April 30, 2024 and further that Council accept the resignation of Todd 
Wallace as a member of the Town of Hanna Municipal Planning Commission 
effective immediately.   
    Motion Carried. 
 
 9.03 Covid-19 Operating Plan Update 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council accepts the Town of Hanna COVID-
19 Operating Plan Update dated May 11, 2021 for information. 
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
127-2021 
Bylaw 1016-2021 
1st Reading  
 
 
 
128-2021 
Bylaw 1016-2021 
Public Hearing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
129-2021 
Bylaw 1017-2021 
1st Reading  
 
 
130-2021 
Bylaw 1017-2021 
Public Hearing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11, 2021 
Page   051: 
 
 
10.0  BYLAWS 
 
 10.01 Bylaw 1016-2021, Land Use Amendment   
 
Bylaw 1016-2021 is to amend Land Use Bylaw No. #967-2012 by re-designating 
portions of Plan 0511341, Block A, Lots 3-6 and Plan 7810701, Block A, Lot 2, in 
the Town of Hanna, from Highway Commercial (HWY-C) to Industrial (I).  This 
bylaw affects the properties located at 708 Highway 9 to 708D Highway 9.    
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council gives first reading to Bylaw 1016-2021, 
Land Use Amendment.  
    Motion Carried.   
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council authorizes a Public Hearing for Bylaw 
1016-2021 to be held on June 8, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. by virtual means to allow any 
person who claims that he/she will be affected prejudicially by Bylaw No. 1016-
2021, an opportunity to be heard by Council; and further, that the notice of the 
public hearing be advertised and that the required notice be sent to owners of the 
affected properties as well as adjacent landowners.   
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 10.02 Bylaw 1017-2021, Municipal Development Plan Amendment 
 
Bylaw 1017-2021 is a bylaw to amend the Municipal Development Plan to re-
designate portions of Plan 0511341, Block A, Lots 3-6 and Plan 7810701, Block 
A, Lot 2 (708 – 708D Highway 9), in the Town of Hanna, from Highway Commercial 
(HWY-C) to Industrial (I).  
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that Council gives first reading to Bylaw 1017-2021, 
Municipal Development Plan Amendment.  
    Motion Carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor Deadlock that Council authorizes a Public Hearing for Bylaw 
1017-2021 to be held on June 8, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. by virtual means to allow any 
person who claims that he/she will be affected prejudicially by Bylaw No. 1017-
2021, an opportunity to be heard by Council; and further, that the notice of the 
public hearing be advertised and that the required notice be sent to owners of the 
affected properties as well as adjacent landowners.  
 
    Motion Carried.   
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
131-2021 
Bylaw 1018-2021 
1st Reading  
 
 
132-2021 
Bylaw 1018-2021 
2nd Reading  
 
 
133-2021 
Bylaw 1018-2021 
Unanimous 
Consent 
 
 
 
134-2021 
Bylaw 1018-2021 
Defeated  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11, 2021 
Page   052: 
 
 
 10.03 Bylaw 1018-2021 – the 2021 Tax Rate Bylaw 
 
Bylaw 1018-2021 is to set the rates of taxation to be levied against assessable 
property within the Town of Hanna for the 2021 taxation year.  
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that Council gives first reading to Bylaw 1018-2021, 
the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw.  
    Motion Carried.   
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that Council gives second reading to Bylaw 1018-2021, 
the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council provides unanimous consent for third 
reading of Bylaw 1018-2021, the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw, at this meeting. 
 
    Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council gives third and final reading to Bylaw 
1018-2021, the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw. 
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that Bylaw 1018-2021, the 2021 Tax Rate Bylaw be 
amended to increase the residential tax rate by 2%. 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill advised that the bylaw would need to be defeated 
on third reading as it cannot be amended by resolution.  
 
Councillor Campion withdrew the amendment to Bylaw 1018-2021.  
 
Councillor Campion asked for a recorded vote on the motion for third and final 
reading of Bylaw 2018-2021.  
 
Mayor Warwick called for the vote to give third and final reading to Bylaw 2018-
2021. 
    Motion Defeated. 
    For: Councillors Beaudoin &  
    Olsen 
    Opposed:  Mayor Warwick 
    Councillors Campion, Deadlock, 
    Jensen & Stickel 
  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
135-2021 
Special Council 
Meeting  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
136-2021 
Bylaw 1019-2021 
1st Reading  
 
 
 
137-2021 
Bylaw 1019-2021 
2nd Reading  
 
 
 
138-2021 
Bylaw 1019-2021 
Unanimous 
Consent 
 
 
 
139-2021 
Bylaw 1019-2021 
3rd & Final Reading  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
140-2021 
Council Reports  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11, 2021 
Page   053: 
 
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that a Special Council Meeting be scheduled on 
May 26, 2021 at 8:30 am to be held virtually for the purpose of reviewing and 
adopting the 2021 Tax Rate Bylaw.  
    Motion Carried.  
 
 10.04 Bylaw 1019-2021, Municipal Public Utilities Amendment 
 
Bylaw 1019-2021 is for the purpose of amending the Municipal Public Utilities 
Bylaws 1006-2020 & 1014-2021, to amend the rates for Regional Waste 
Commission fee.  
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council gives first reading to Bylaw 1019-2021, 
the Municipal Public Utilities Amendment Bylaw. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor Deadlock that Council gives second reading to Bylaw 1019-
2021, the Municipal Public Utilities Amendment Bylaw. 
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council provides unanimous consent for third 
reading of Bylaw 1019-2021, the Municipal Public Utilities Amendment Bylaw at 
this meeting. 
    Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that Council gives third and final reading to Bylaw 
1019-2021, the Municipal Public Utilities Amendment Bylaw. 
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 
11.0 COUNCIL REPORTS AND ROUNDTABLE 
 
The Mayor and Councillors provided written or verbal reports regarding meetings 
and events attended since the last Regular Council meeting. 
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that the Council Reports be accepted for information.  
 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
141-2021 
Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11, 2021 
Page   054: 
 
  
12.0 CORRESPONDENCE 
  

12.01 Alberta Justice & Solicitor General – RCMP Invoice Letter 
12.02 Palliser Economic Partnership – Invoice Letter 
12.03 Town of Morinville – RCMP Support 
12.04 Paintearth County – RCMP Support 
12.05 Prairie Land Pride Newsletter – Volume 6 Issue 4 April 2021 
12.06 Town of High River – Support re: Eastern Slopes Coal Exploration 
 Public Consultation on the 1976 Coal Development Policy 
12.07 Alberta Health Services – Emergency Operations Centre – 

Regional Health Restrictions 
12.08 Alberta Health Services – Vendor Selected for Linen Services 
12.09 Town of Magrath – Letter of Support for RCMP 
12.10 Introduction to new Consulate-General of Japan in Calgary 
12.11 Prairie Land School Division – Board Highlights – April 27, 2021 
12.12 Palliser Regional Municipal Services - Member Communication 

May 2021 
12.13 Town of Edson – Letter to Minister of Justice re Support for RCMP 
12.14 TransAlta – Pembina Pipeline – Garden Plain Wind Project 
12.15 County of St. Paul – Letter to Honorable Minister Madu – Support 

for RCMP 
12.16 Town of Didsbury – Letter to the Minister of Justice Solicitor 

General - Alberta Provincial Police Service Transition Study 
12.17 Town of Tofield – Letter to Minister Shandro – Vaccine Distribution 

Concerns  
12.18 Town of Tofield – Letter to MP Kurek – Vaccine Distribution 

Concerns 
12.19 Hanna Seniors Circle – Thank You  
12.20 Canadian Badlands Update – April 21 
 

Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council accepts Correspondence items 12.01 
to 12.20 for information.  
    Motion Carried.  
 
 
13.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Regular Council Meeting  
May 11, 2021 
Page   055: 
 
  
14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Chris Warwick declared all business concluded and adjourned the meeting 
at 8:02 p.m. 
 
These minutes approved this 8th day of June 2021. 
 
 
 
        
    Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
 
              
    Chief Administrative Officer    
    Kim Neill 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
142-2021 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page... 056: 
 

TOWN OF HANNA 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

MAY 26, 2021 
 
 

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Council of the Town of Hanna held 
Wednesday, May 26, 2021 at 8:30 p.m. through video conference for the purpose 
of adopting the 2021 Tax Rate Bylaw.   
 
Councillors Present: 
 Mayor Chris Warwick 
 Sandra Beaudoin 
 Gerald Campion 
 Connie Deadlock  
 Melanie Jensen   
 Kyle Olsen 
 Larry Stickel  
 
Administration Present: 

Kim Neill – Chief Administrative Officer  
Rhonda Lund – Director of Corporate Services 
Laurie Armstrong – Director of Business & Communication   
Gwen Snell – Director of Community Services 
Adrian Mohl – Director of Protective Services 
Brent Olesen – Director of Public Works  

 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Chris Warwick called the meeting to order at 8:30 p.m.  
 
 
2.0 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that the agenda for the May 26, 2021 Special Council 
Meeting be adopted as amended to include the 2021 Operating & Capital Budget 
Adjustments dated May 26, 2021. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
3.0 BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill reviewed the Spring Budget adjustments, which 
must be adopted prior to setting the municipal tax rate for 2021.   At the May 11th, 
2021 Council Meeting, the budget was adopted based on a 0% tax rate increase, 
however the corresponding tax rate bylaw was defeated at that meeting.  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
143-2021 
Meeting Postponed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Special Council Meeting  
May 26, 2021 
Page   057: 
 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill reviewed the budget adjustments, confirming that 
the only changes to the adopted budget are as a result of an adjustment to the 
non-residential assessment that affects the municipal tax revenue and the decision 
to increase the municipal tax rate which will reduce the amount drawn from 
reserves.  
 
During discussion regarding the budget and the tax rate bylaw, it was the 
consensus of Council that the budget be adopted with a 0% increase to the 
residential and non-residential tax rate.  Administration will need time to prepare 
the revised budget and tax rate bylaw.   
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that the Special Council Meeting be postponed and 
re-convene at 7:00 p.m. May 26, 2021.   
    Motion Carried. 
  
Mayor Warwick declared a recess at 8:56 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. May 26, 2021.   
 
Mayor Warwick called the Special Council Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Councillors Present: 
 Mayor Chris Warwick 
 Sandra Beaudoin 
 Gerald Campion 
 Connie Deadlock  
 Melanie Jensen   
 Kyle Olsen 
 Larry Stickel  
 
Administration Present: 

Kim Neill – Chief Administrative Officer  
Rhonda Lund – Director of Corporate Services 
Laurie Armstrong – Director of Business & Communication   

 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill reviewed the budget document provided to 
Council.  The proposed changes to the 2021 budget include revenues based on 
the municipal tax rate for residential and non-residential properties remaining at 
2020 levels, a reduction in the non-residential assessment and a draw from surplus 
in the amount of $67,967.    
 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill reviewed the Tax Rate Bylaw provided to Council 
and the tax implications to residential and non-residential properties.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
144-2021 
2021 Operating & 
Capital Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
145-2021 
Bylaw 1020-2021 
1st Reading  
 
 
146-2021 
Bylaw 1020-2021 
2nd Reading  
 
 
 
147-2021 
Bylaw 1020-2021 
Unanimous 
Consent 
 
 
148-2021 
Bylaw 1020-2021 
3rd & Final Reading  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Special Council Meeting  
May 26, 2021 
Page   058: 
 
 
 3.01 2021 Operating & Capital Budget  
 
Moved by Councillor Olsen that   
 Whereas Council approved the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget for the 

Town of Hanna at the December 8, 2020 Council Meeting, and  
 Whereas Council approved the Spring Budget Adjustments dated May 11, 

2021 at the May 11, 2021 Council Meeting, and  
 Whereas adjustments to the adopted budget are required for various 

reasons prior to setting the 2021 Tax Rates, and  
 Whereas the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget has been adjusted to 

reflect a 0% increase to the residential and non-residential municipal tax 
rate and a draw from surplus in the amount of $ 67,962              

Therefore, Council adopts the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget dated May 26, 
2021 as amended by the Spring Budget Adjustments; and accepts the 2022 & 
2023 Operating Budgets and the 2022 – 2025 Capital Budget for information. 
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 3.02 Bylaw 1020-2021– the 2021 Tax Rate Bylaw 
 
Bylaw 1020-2021 is to set the rates of taxation to be levied against assessable 
property within the Town of Hanna for the 2021 taxation year.  
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that Council gives first reading to Bylaw 1020-2021, 
the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw.  
    Motion Carried.   
 
Moved by Councillor Deadlock that Council gives second reading to Bylaw 1020-
2021, the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor Stickel that Council provides unanimous consent for third 
reading of Bylaw 1020-2021, the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw, at this meeting. 
 
    Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that Council gives third and final reading to Bylaw 
1020-2021, the 2021 Tax Rate bylaw. 
    Motion Carried. 
 
  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Special Council Meeting  
May 26, 2021 
Page   059: 
 
 
14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Chris Warwick declared all business concluded and adjourned the meeting 
at 7:14 p.m. 
 
These minutes approved this 8th day of June 2021. 
 
 
 
        
    Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
 
              
    Chief Administrative Officer    
    Kim Neill 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
149-2021 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page... 060: 
 

TOWN OF HANNA 
INFORMATION COUNCIL MEETING 

May 26, 2021 
 
 

Minutes of an Information Meeting of the Council of the Town of Hanna held 
Wednesday, May 26, 2021 at 8:30 a.m. through video conference.   
 
Councillors Present: 
 Mayor Chris Warwick 
 Sandra Beaudoin 
 Gerald Campion 
 Connie Deadlock  
 Melanie Jensen  
 Kyle Olsen 
 Larry Stickel  
 
Administration Present: 

Kim Neill – Chief Administrative Officer  
Rhonda Lund – Director of Corporate Services  
Laurie Armstrong – Director of Business & Communication   
Gwen Snell – Director of Community Services 
Adrian Mohl – Director of Protective Services 
Brent Olesen – Director of Public Works  

 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Chris Warwick called the meeting to order at 8:56 a.m.  
 
 
2.0 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that the agenda for the May 26, 2021 Information 
Council Meeting be adopted as presented. 
   Motion Carried. 
 
 
3.0 DELEGATIONS 
 

3.01 818 Studio Ltd. – Hanna Community Development Project Update 
 
Jennifer Koppe & Paul Conrad from 818 Studio Ltd. provided Council with an 
update on the Hanna Community Development Project regarding signage.   
 
 
 
 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
150-2021 
Hanna Community 
Development 
Project Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
151-2021 
CCEDC Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Council Information Meeting  
May 26, 2021 
Page   061: 
 
 
Jennifer Koppe reviewed the proposed signage strategy for the entrances, town-
owned points of interest and directional wayfinding to provide a cohesive look for 
signage.    818 Studio will be attending the Famer’s Markets on Wednesdays and 
will have a storefront presence during the month of June to encourage public 
engagement. Council and administration provided feedback on the proposal based 
on low maintenance and cost.      
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council thanks the representatives from 818 
Studio Ltd. for their update on the Hanna Community Development Project. 
 
    Motion Carried.  
 
 3.02 Cactus Corridor Economic Development Corporation 
 
Mark Nikota was in attendance to provide Council with an update on the programs 
and activities of the Cactus Corridor Economic Development Corporation.   The 
CCEDC is working with a number of projects to provide information or resources. 
 
Mark Nikota advised that Cactus Corridor EDC  is changing to Harvest Sky Region 
Economic Development Corporation.   He introduced the new logo for the Harvest 
Sky Region and the proposal to align and update the regional partner’s brands 
using Harvest Sky as a way to promote the region as well as the individual 
members of HSRECD, Town of Hanna, Village of Youngtown, Special Areas and 
the Learning Centre. 
 
Moved by Councillor Deadlock that Council thanks Mark Nikota, Manager of 
Cactus Corridor Economic Development Corporation for his presentation updating 
Council on the activities of Cactus Corridor Economic Development Corporation. 
 
    Motion Carried. 
 
 3.03 Covid 19 – Hanna CARES Survey Results Analysis 
 
Gwen Snell, Director of Community Services reviewed the results of the Hanna 
CARES Survey related to Covid-19 and provided an analysis of the outcomes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
152-2021 
Hanna Cares 
Survey Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
153-2021 
RCMP – Provincial 
Police Force Study 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
154-2021 
Coal Development 
– Eastern Slopes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Council Information Meeting  
May 26, 2021 
Page   062: 
 
 
Councillor Deadlock left the meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Moved by Councillor Jensen that Council accepts the Covid-19 Hanna CARES 
Survey Results Analysis Report for Information.  
    Motion Carried. 
 
  
4.0 PUBLIC PRESENTATION  
 
No member of the public contacted the Chief Administrative Officer prior to the 
meeting to register for the public presentation portion of the agenda.    
 
 
5.0 CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Neill provided a review of his written report. 
 
 
6.0 BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

6.01 RCMP – Provincial Police Force Study   
 

The Chief Administrative Officer Neill and Council reviewed the information 
provided in the report.     
 
Moved by Councillor Beaudoin that Council accepts for information the RCMP – 
Provincial Police Force Study as presented.  
    Motion Carried. 
  
 6.02 Coal Development – Eastern Slopes  
 
The Chief Administrative Officer Neill and Council reviewed the information 
provided in the report.     
 
Moved by Councillor Campion that Council accepts for information the Coal 
Development Permits – Eastern Slopes Report as presented. 
 
    Motion Carried. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hanna  
Council Information Meeting  
May 26, 2021 
Page   064: 
 
 
7.0 COUNCIL ROUNDTABLE  
 
The Mayor and Councillors provided written or verbal reports regarding meetings 
and events attended since the May 11th, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 
 
 
8.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Chris Warwick declared all business concluded and adjourned the meeting 
at 10:48 a.m. 
 
These minutes approved this 8th day of June 2021. 
 
 
        
    Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
 
              
    Chief Administrative Officer    
    Kim Neill 



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 06.01 
 

Item Title 
 

Accounts Payable 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council accepts the accounts payable listings for general account cheques 41647 – 41694 and 
direct deposit payments 000277 – 000321 for information. 
 

Background 
 
Administration, at each regular council meeting, will provide Council with a detailed listing of the 
cheques processed since the previous regular council meeting for their information.     
 
The reports are separated by cheques and direct deposits.    The software program can combine both 
payment types, but not in ascending order.   The reports are attached for your review.   
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information presented. 
 

Communications 
 
N/A 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\06.01 accounts payable.docx 

Attachments 
 
1. Accounts Payable Listing – Cheques 41647 – 41694 totaling $217,540.68.              
2. Accounts Payable Listing – Direct Deposits 000277 – 000321 totaling $83,049.79.         

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

Date: June 8, 2021       Agenda Item No: 06.02 
 

Item Title 
 

Statement of Revenue & Expense 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council accepts the Statement of Revenue and Expense Report for May 2021 for information. 
 

Background 
 
Administration at each regular council meeting will provide Council with a Statement of Revenues and 
Expenses for the month recently concluded.  This statement will reflect the financial position of the 
Town relative to the approved budget.  
 
The budget figures have been updated from the 2021 Operating and Capital budgets approved by 
Council at the May 26, 2021 Special Council Meeting.    The capital budget figures have been split from 
the operating in those departments where capital items are in the budget. 
 
The statement reflects the revenues and expenses to May 31, 2021.   
  
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information presented. 
 

Communications 
 
N/A 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\06.02 statement of revenue & expense.docx 

Attachments 
 
1. Statement of Revenue & Expense Report – May 2021.   

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 1 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

GENERAL MUNICIPAL

MUNICIPAL RESIDENTAL REAL PROPERTY T 1-01-0000-111 0.00 2,399,124.00- 2,399,124.00-
COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY TAX 1-01-0000-112 0.00 900,657.00- 900,657.00-
INDUSTRIAL  REAL PROPERTY TAX 1-01-0000-113 0.00 74,676.00- 74,676.00-
FARMLAND REAL PROPERTY TAX 1-01-0000-114 0.00 1,366.00- 1,366.00-
POWER PIPELINE & CABLE T.V. 1-01-0000-115 0.00 147,754.00- 147,754.00-
PROVINCIAL GRANTS-IN-LIEU 1-01-0000-240 0.01- 66,768.00- 66,767.99-
PENALTY & COST ON TAX 1-01-0000-510 12,801.57- 25,500.00- 12,698.43-
CONCESSION & FRANCHISE 1-01-0000-540 176,714.31- 441,400.00- 264,685.69-
RETURN ON INVESTMENTS 1-01-0000-550 5,921.66- 71,400.00- 65,478.34-
DRAWN FROM OPERATING 1-01-0000-920 0.00 67,962.00- 67,962.00-

195,437.55-TOTAL GENERAL MUNICIPAL 01: 4,196,607.00- 4,001,169.45-
COUNCIL REVENUE

COUNCIL OTHER REVENUE 1-11-0000-590 0.00 5,100.00- 5,100.00-
0.00 TOTAL COUNCIL REVENUE 11: 5,100.00- 5,100.00-

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

ADMIN GENERAL SERVICE & SUPPLY 1-12-0000-410 749.95- 3,500.00- 2,750.05-
ADMIN SOUVENIR 1-12-0000-419 301.92- 5,000.00- 4,698.08-
ADMIN RENTAL & LEASE REVENUE 1-12-0000-560 8,600.00- 16,300.00- 7,700.00-
ADMIN OTHER REVENUE 1-12-0000-590 91.82- 5,000.00- 4,908.18-
ADMIN FEDERAL CONDITIONAL 1-12-0000-830 0.00 40,000.00- 40,000.00-
ADMIN PROVINCIAL CONDITIONAL GRANT 1-12-0000-840 0.00 152,800.00- 152,800.00-
ADMIN SPECIAL AREAS PROV. CONDITIONA 1-12-0000-841 0.00 200,000.00- 200,000.00-
ADMIN DRAWN FROM SURPLUS (OPERATING 1-12-0000-920 0.00 20,000.00- 20,000.00-

9,743.69-TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 12: 442,600.00- 432,856.31-
TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY

TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY - LEASE 1-12-0600-560 6,000.00- 10,100.00- 4,100.00-
6,000.00-TOTAL TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY: 10,100.00- 4,100.00-

POLICE

POLICE PROVINCIAL FINES 1-21-0000-530 2,246.00- 11,600.00- 9,354.00-
2,246.00-TOTAL POLICE: 11,600.00- 9,354.00-

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT

FIRE

FIRE FIRE FIGHTING FEES 1-23-0000-410 33,762.50- 95,000.00- 61,237.50-
FIRE PROVINCIAL CONDITIONAL GRANT 1-23-0000-840 0.00 375,000.00- 375,000.00-
FIRE SPECIAL AREAS OPERATIONS GRANT 1-23-0000-850 0.00 105,386.00- 105,386.00-

33,762.50-TOTAL FIRE: 575,386.00- 541,623.50-
FIRE - ECETP

FIRE ECETP - DRAWN FROM SURPLUS 1-23-0200-920 0.00 8,500.00- 8,500.00-
0.00 FIRE - ECETP TOTAL: 8,500.00- 8,500.00-

EMERGENCY SERVICES

EMERGENCY SERV PROV CONDITIONAL GRAN 1-24-0000-840 0.00 3,250.00- 3,250.00-
0.00 TOTAL DISASTER SERVICES: 3,250.00- 3,250.00-

BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT

BY-LAW WORK BILLED TO OTHERS 1-26-0000-410 28.57- 3,000.00- 2,971.43-
BY-LAW DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 1-26-0000-520 210.00- 400.00- 190.00-
BY-LAW BUSINESS LICENSES 1-26-0000-522 17,950.00- 19,000.00- 1,050.00-
BY-LAW COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATES 1-26-0000-525 75.00- 200.00- 125.00-
BY-LAW FINES 1-26-0000-530 100.00- 1,000.00- 900.00-
BY-LAW OTHER REVENUE 1-26-0000-590 0.00 500.00- 500.00-

18,363.57-TOTAL BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT: 24,100.00- 5,736.43-
DOG CONTROL

DOG CONTROL - ANIMAL LICENSES 1-28-0000-526 4,780.00- 4,300.00- 480.00 
DOG CONTROL - IMPOUND & SUSTENANCE 1-28-0000-590 0.00 100.00- 100.00-

4,780.00-TOTAL DOG CONTROL: 4,400.00- 380.00 
COMMON SERVICES

COMMON SERV WORK BILLED TO OTHER 1-31-0000-410 0.00 4,800.00- 4,800.00-
COMMON SERV OTHER REVENUE 1-31-0000-590 0.00 300.00- 300.00-



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 2 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

COMMON SERV DRAWN FROM SURPLUS (OPER 1-31-0000-920 0.00 70,000.00- 70,000.00-
0.00 TOTAL COMMON SERVICES: 75,100.00- 75,100.00-

STREETS & ROADS

S & R PROVINCIAL CONDITIONAL GRANT 1-32-0000-840 0.00 616,041.00- 616,041.00-
0.00 TOTAL STREETS & ROADS: 616,041.00- 616,041.00-

AIRPORT

AIRPORT RENTAL & LEASE REVENUE 1-33-0000-560 2,550.00- 7,900.00- 5,350.00-
AIRPORT OTHER REVENUE 1-33-0000-590 103.08- 100.00- 3.08 
AIRPORT PROVINCIAL CONDITIONAL 1-33-0000-840 0.00 75,000.00- 75,000.00-
AIRPORT LOCAL GRANT 1-33-0000-850 0.00 22,165.00- 22,165.00-

2,653.08-TOTAL AIRPORT: 105,165.00- 102,511.92-
WATER SUPPLY & DISTRIBUTION

WATER SALE OF WATER 1-41-0000-410 328,551.09- 1,119,400.00- 790,848.91-
WATER SERVICE CHARGES 1-41-0000-413 500.00- 1,300.00- 800.00-
WATER DRAWN FROM SURPLUS (OPERATING 1-41-0000-920 0.00 10,000.00- 10,000.00-
WATER RECOVERY FROM OPERATING - WATE 1-41-0000-963 8,758.40- 69,800.00- 61,041.60-

337,809.49-TOTAL WATER SUPPLY & DISTRIBUTION: 1,200,500.00- 862,690.51-
WATER LINES & DISTRIBUTION

WATER LINES WORK BILLED TO OTHERS 1-41-0200-410 310.00- 0.00 310.00 
310.00-TOTAL WATER LINES & DISTRIBUTION: 0.00 310.00 

SANITARY SEWERS

SEWER CHARGES 1-42-0000-410 84,697.27- 260,100.00- 175,402.73-
SEWER DRAWN FROM SURPLUS (OPERATING 1-42-0000-920 0.00 37,500.00- 37,500.00-

84,697.27-TOTAL SANITARY SEWERS: 297,600.00- 212,902.73-
GARBAGE COLLECTION & DISPOSAL

GARBAGE CHARGES RESIDENTIAL 1-43-0000-410 25,072.22- 74,300.00- 49,227.78-
GARBAGE OTHER REVENUE 1-43-0000-590 55.00- 0.00 55.00 

25,127.22-TOTAL GARBAGE COLLECTION & DISPOSAL: 74,300.00- 49,172.78-
BIG COUNTRY WASTE AUTHORITY

REGIONAL WASTE SITE FEES 1-44-0000-410 99,907.56- 336,300.00- 236,392.44-
REGIONAL WASTE OTHER REVENUE 1-44-0000-590 0.00 100.00- 100.00-

99,907.56-TOTAL BIG COUNTRY WASTE AUTHORITY: 336,400.00- 236,492.44-
F.C.S.S.

FCSS PROGRAM REVENUE 1-51-0000-402 0.00 800.00- 800.00-
FCSS VAN RENTAL 1-51-0000-561 99.45- 700.00- 600.55-
FCSS FEDERAL CONDITIONAL 1-51-0000-830 1,500.00- 1,500.00- 0.00 
FCSS PROVINCIAL CONDITIONAL 1-51-0000-840 37,417.00- 89,798.00- 52,381.00-

39,016.45-TOTAL F.C.S.S.: 92,798.00- 53,781.55-
FCSS - YOUTH CLUB

FCSS - YOUTH CLUB - DRAWN FROM SURPL 1-51-0300-920 0.00 22,000.00- 22,000.00-
0.00 TOTAL FCSS - YOUTH CLUB: 22,000.00- 22,000.00-

CEMETERY

CEMETERY CHARGES 1-56-0000-410 12,175.00- 13,800.00- 1,625.00-
CEMETERY OTHER 1-56-0000-590 33.34- 100.00- 66.66-

12,208.34-TOTAL CEMETERY: 13,900.00- 1,691.66-
COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING

COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING RENT 1-61-0200-560 24,000.00- 24,000.00- 0.00 
24,000.00-TOTAL COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING: 24,000.00- 0.00 

BUSINESS & COMMUNICATIONS

BUS COM DRAWN FROM SURPLUS (OPERATIN 1-61-0400-920 0.00 10,000.00- 10,000.00-
0.00 TOTAL BUSINESS & COMMUNICATIONS: 10,000.00- 10,000.00-

SUBDIVISION

SUBDIVISION SALE OF LAND 1-66-0000-400 61,243.09- 0.00 61,243.09 
SUBDIVISION WORK BILLED TO OTHERS 1-66-0000-410 350.00- 0.00 350.00 

61,593.09-TOTAL SUBDIVISION: 0.00 61,593.09 
RECREATION & PARKS FACILITIES



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 3 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

RECREATION SALES & SERVICE 1-72-0000-410 0.00 500.00- 500.00-
RECREATION PROGRAM REVENUE 1-72-0000-430 20.00- 1,000.00- 980.00-
RECREATION FEDERAL CONDITIONAL GRANT 1-72-0000-830 0.00 37,100.00- 37,100.00-
RECREATION LOCAL GRANTS 1-72-0000-850 0.00 187,000.00- 187,000.00-
RECREATION DRAWN FROM DEFERRED REVEN 1-72-0000-930 0.00 6,100.00- 6,100.00-
RECREATION WORK BILLED TO OTHERS 1-72-0000-998 0.00 5,400.00- 5,400.00-

20.00-TOTAL RECREATION REVENUE: 237,100.00- 237,080.00-
SWIMMING POOLS

POOL USER FEES 1-72-0100-410 34,875.83- 58,400.00- 23,524.17-
POOL RETAIL SALES 1-72-0100-419 393.84- 3,100.00- 2,706.16-
POOL RENTAL REVENUE 1-72-0100-560 0.00 6,100.00- 6,100.00-
POOL DONATIONS 1-72-0100-590 6.00- 83,200.00- 83,194.00-

35,275.67-TOTAL SWIMMING POOLS: 150,800.00- 115,524.33-
ARENA

ARENA ADVERTISING REV SIGNS 1-72-0200-410 2,836.25- 6,500.00- 3,663.75-
ARENA RENTAL REVENUE 1-72-0200-560 12,813.19- 42,300.00- 29,486.81-
ARENA LOBBY & CONCESSION RENTAL 1-72-0200-562 0.00 1,800.00- 1,800.00-
ARENA DONATIONS 1-72-0200-590 0.00 2,850.00- 2,850.00-
ARENA PROVINCIAL CONDITIONAL 1-72-0200-840 0.00 18,500.00- 18,500.00-
ARENA DRAWN FROM SURPLUS (OPERATING 1-72-0200-920 0.00 18,500.00- 18,500.00-

15,649.44-TOTAL ARENA: 90,450.00- 74,800.56-
CURLING RINK

CURLING RINK SALE OF SERVICES 1-72-0400-410 0.00 22,000.00- 22,000.00-
CURLING RINK RENTAL REVENUE 1-72-0400-560 0.00 6,500.00- 6,500.00-

0.00 CURLING RINK TOTAL: 28,500.00- 28,500.00-
BALL DIAMONDS

BALL DIAMOND REVENUE 1-72-0500-560 0.00 5,100.00- 5,100.00-
0.00 TOTAL BALL DIAMONDS REVENUE: 5,100.00- 5,100.00-

FOX LAKE & HELMER DAM

FOX LAKE REVENUE 1-72-0700-410 343.78 3,000.00- 3,343.78-
FOX LAKE RETAIL SALES - ICE & NOVELT 1-72-0700-419 21.00- 400.00- 379.00-
FOX LAKE RENTAL REVENUE 1-72-0700-560 9,402.10- 68,300.00- 58,897.90-

9,079.32-TOTAL FOX LAKE & HELMER DAM: 71,700.00- 62,620.68-
PARKS

PARKS OTHER REVENUE 1-72-0800-990 400.00- 0.00 400.00 
400.00-TOTAL PARKS: 0.00 400.00 

PLAYGROUND PROGRAM

PLAYGROUND PROGRAM REVENUE 1-72-1000-410 0.00 2,000.00- 2,000.00-
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM DONATIONS 1-72-1000-591 5,000.00- 500.00- 4,500.00 

5,000.00-TOTAL PLAYGROUND PROGRAM: 2,500.00- 2,500.00 
SPRAY PARK

SPRAY PARK DONATION 1-72-1200-560 0.00 2,400.00- 2,400.00-
0.00 TOTAL SPRAY PARK REVENUE: 2,400.00- 2,400.00-

HKH PIONEER PARK

HKH PIONEER PARK REVENUE 1-72-1300-560 15,195.40- 15,195.00- 0.40 
HKH DRAWN FROM SURPLUS 1-72-1300-920 0.00 8,000.00- 8,000.00-

15,195.40-TOTAL HKH PARK REVENUE: 23,195.00- 7,999.60-
SOCCER FIELDS

SOCCER FIELDS REVENUE 1-72-1400-560 0.00 2,100.00- 2,100.00-
0.00 TOTAL SOCCER FIELDS REVENUE: 2,100.00- 2,100.00-

LIBRARY

LIBRARY OTHER REVENUE 1-74-0200-590 0.00 10,000.00- 10,000.00-
0.00 TOTAL LIBRARY: 10,000.00- 10,000.00-

REGIONAL COMMUNITY SERVICES CENTRE

RCSC RENTAL REVENUE 1-74-0800-560 71.99 6,800.00- 6,871.99-
RCSC LEASE AGREEMENT REVENUE 1-74-0800-561 0.00 18,600.00- 18,600.00-
RCSC DONATIONS / SPONSORSHIPS 1-74-0800-591 19,047.62- 19,850.00- 802.38-
RCSC DRAWN FROM DEFERRED REVENUE 1-74-0800-930 0.00 6,142.00- 6,142.00-



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 4 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

RCSC FITNESS CENTRE FEE REVENUE 1-74-0801-561 2,402.26 13,000.00- 15,402.26-
16,573.37-TOTAL REGIONAL COMMUNITY SERVICES CENTRE: 64,392.00- 47,818.63-

COMMUNITY CENTRE

COMMUNITY CENTRE RENTAL REVENUE 1-74-0900-560 10,000.00- 17,500.00- 7,500.00-
COMMUNITY CENTRE DRAWN FROM DEF REV 1-74-0900-930 0.00 5,000.00- 5,000.00-

10,000.00-TOTAL COMMUNITY CENTRE: 22,500.00- 12,500.00-
LIONS HALL

LIONS HALL RENTAL REVENUE 1-74-1000-560 150.00- 1,200.00- 1,050.00-
150.00-LIONS HALL TOTAL: 1,200.00- 1,050.00-

1,064,999.01-TOTAL REVENUE: 8,861,384.00- 7,796,384.99-
COUNCIL

COUNCIL WAGES 2-11-0000-110 36,390.16 85,600.00 49,209.84 
COUNCIL BENEFITS 2-11-0000-130 1,502.83 4,200.00 2,697.17 
COUNCIL NON T4 BENEFITS 2-11-0000-133 525.00 550.00 25.00 
COUNCIL TRAVEL & SUBSISTANCE 2-11-0000-211 0.00 9,800.00 9,800.00 
COUNCIL TRAINING / REGISTRATIONS 2-11-0000-212 250.00 7,700.00 7,450.00 
COUNCIL GOODS 2-11-0000-500 0.00 12,800.00 12,800.00 
COUNCIL OTHER (ELECTION) 2-11-0000-990 0.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 
COUNCIL PUBLIC RELATIONS & PROMOTION 2-11-0000-999 414.02 3,900.00 3,485.98 

39,082.01 TOTAL COUNCIL: 130,150.00 91,067.99 
ADMINISTRATION

ADMINISTRATION SALARIES 2-12-0000-110 145,798.48 314,800.00 169,001.52 
ADMINISTRATION CASUAL LABOUR 2-12-0000-111 2,293.20 10,800.00 8,506.80 
ADMINISTRATION EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2-12-0000-130 11,296.76 17,100.00 5,803.24 
ADMINISTRATION CASUAL BENEFITS 2-12-0000-131 161.56 800.00 638.44 
ADMINISTRATION NON T4 BENEFITS 2-12-0000-133 15,363.84 33,100.00 17,736.16 
ADMINISTRATION PAYROLL COSTS 2-12-0000-200 251.68 1,900.00 1,648.32 
ADMINISTRATION WORKERS COMPENSATION 2-12-0000-201 5,524.27 18,400.00 12,875.73 
ADMINISTRATION TRAVEL & SUBSISTANCE 2-12-0000-211 150.00 4,800.00 4,650.00 
ADMINISTRATION STAFF TRAINING 2-12-0000-212 650.00 4,900.00 4,250.00 
ADMINISTRATION FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-12-0000-215 2,358.20 9,900.00 7,541.80 
ADMINISTRATION TELEPHONE 2-12-0000-217 4,700.01 14,600.00 9,899.99 
ADMINISTRATION ADVERTISING & PRINTIN 2-12-0000-220 2,184.48 7,500.00 5,315.52 
ADMINISTRATION SUBSCRIPTION & MEMBER 2-12-0000-221 5,524.15 9,300.00 3,775.85 
ADMINISTRATION AUDIT 2-12-0000-230 23,800.00 33,000.00 9,200.00 
ADMINISTRATION LEGAL 2-12-0000-231 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
ADMINISTRATION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2-12-0000-232 32,466.17 150,400.00 117,933.83 
ADMINISTRATION REGIONAL PLANNING SER 2-12-0000-233 32,635.06 32,635.00 0.06-
ADMINISTRATION CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-12-0000-250 1,036.00 5,000.00 3,964.00 
ADMINISTRATION INSURANCE 2-12-0000-274 14,503.14 14,500.00 3.14-
ADMINISTRATION ASSESSOR 2-12-0000-280 2,229.56 44,300.00 42,070.44 
ADMINISTRATION LAND TITLES OFFICE 2-12-0000-285 906.57 1,000.00 93.43 
ADMINISTRATION GOODS 2-12-0000-500 12,006.79 15,700.00 3,693.21 
ADMINISTRATION GOODS - SOUVENIRS 2-12-0000-501 625.55 4,900.00 4,274.45 
ADMINISTRATION POWER 2-12-0000-541 9,423.39 21,000.00 11,576.61 
ADMINISTRATION GRANTS TO OTHER ORGAN 2-12-0000-770 64,450.05 127,700.00 63,249.95 
ADMINISTRATION BANK CHARGES 2-12-0000-810 1,947.68 4,800.00 2,852.32 
ADMINISTRATION GROSS REC TO OPER - W 2-12-0000-963 246.41 2,900.00 2,653.59 
ADMINISTRATION OTHER 2-12-0000-990 2,657.32 32,000.00 29,342.68 
ADMINISTRATION PUBLIC REC. - PROMOTI 2-12-0000-999 210.00 1,000.00 790.00 

395,400.32 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION: 943,735.00 548,334.68 
TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY

TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY - CONTRACTED R 2-12-0600-250 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 
TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY - INSURANCE 2-12-0600-274 287.42 290.00 2.58 
TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY - HEAT 2-12-0600-540 794.37 1,800.00 1,005.63 
TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY - POWER 2-12-0600-541 719.82 1,500.00 780.18 
TRANSFER TO CAPITAL 2-12-0600-762 0.00 3,730.00 3,730.00 
TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY - RECOVERIES T 2-12-0600-963 438.25 780.00 341.75 

2,239.86 TOTAL TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY: 10,100.00 7,860.14 
POLICE

POLICE TRANSFERS TO PROVINCIAL GOVER 2-21-0000-340 48,500.00 48,500.00 0.00 
48,500.00 TOTAL POLICE: 48,500.00 0.00 

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 5 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT TRAINING 2-22-0000-212 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 
SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT SUBSCRIPTIO 2-22-0000-221 149.00 150.00 1.00 
SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT CONTRACTED 2-22-0000-250 0.00 800.00 800.00 
SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT GOODS 2-22-0000-500 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 

149.00 TOTAL SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT: 4,750.00 4,601.00 
FIRE

FIRE SALARIES - DIR PROTECTIVE SERVI 2-23-0000-110 6,990.71 15,600.00 8,609.29 
FIRE SALARIES - OFFICERS & FIRE FIGH 2-23-0000-111 0.00 83,300.00 83,300.00 
FIRE BENEFITS 2-23-0000-130 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
FIRE BENEFITS - FIRE FIGHTERS 2-23-0000-131 1,023.70 8,600.00 7,576.30 
FIRE NON T4 BENEFITS 2-23-0000-133 1,444.00 4,200.00 2,756.00 
FIRE TRAVEL 2-23-0000-211 560.00 7,000.00 6,440.00 
FIRE TRAINING 2-23-0000-212 12,895.00 23,400.00 10,505.00 
FIRE FREIGHT 2-23-0000-215 208.17 400.00 191.83 
FIRE TELEPHONE 2-23-0000-217 2,821.53 7,800.00 4,978.47 
FIRE ADVERTISING 2-23-0000-220 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
FIRE MEMBERSHIPS 2-23-0000-221 724.50 900.00 175.50 
FIRE CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-23-0000-232 11,084.50 22,600.00 11,515.50 
FIRE CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-23-0000-250 6,826.46 14,000.00 7,173.54 
FIRE CONTRACTED VEHICLE REPAIRS 2-23-0000-255 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
FIRE INSURANCE 2-23-0000-274 14,987.12 14,990.00 2.88 
FIRE PREVENTION & INVESTIGATION 2-23-0000-275 0.00 600.00 600.00 
FIRE GOODS 2-23-0000-500 4,644.80 18,200.00 13,555.20 
FIRE PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-23-0000-521 2,743.65 6,900.00 4,156.35 
FIRE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-23-0000-523 0.00 200.00 200.00 
FIRE HEATING 2-23-0000-540 4,984.58 9,400.00 4,415.42 
FIRE POWER 2-23-0000-541 3,309.75 12,400.00 9,090.25 
FIRE TRANSFER TO CAPITAL 2-23-0000-762 0.00 375,000.00 375,000.00 
FIRE GROSS RECOVERIES TO OPERATING 2-23-0000-963 1,754.56 14,800.00 13,045.44 

77,003.03 TOTAL FIRE: 647,290.00 570,286.97 
FIRE - EAST CENTRAL EMERGENCY TRAINING PARTNERSHIP

FIRE - ECETP TRAINING 2-23-0200-212 0.00 8,500.00 8,500.00 
FIRE - ECETP CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-23-0200-232 400.00 0.00 400.00-

400.00 TOTAL FIRE - ECETP: 8,500.00 8,100.00 
EMERGENCY SERVICES

EMERGENCY SERVICES TRAINING 2-24-0000-212 145.00 5,200.00 5,055.00 
EMERGENCY SERVICES GOODS 2-24-0000-500 0.00 900.00 900.00 
EMERGENCY SERVICES OTHER 2-24-0000-990 0.00 100.00 100.00 

145.00 TOTAL EMERGENCY SERVICES: 6,200.00 6,055.00 
BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT

BYLAW SALARIES 2-26-0000-110 22,720.02 50,500.00 27,779.98 
BYLAW BENEFITS 2-26-0000-130 2,866.27 3,200.00 333.73 
BYLAW NON T4 BENEFITS 2-26-0000-133 6,271.83 9,100.00 2,828.17 
BYLAW FREIGHT 2-26-0000-215 540.00 700.00 160.00 
BYLAW TELEPHONE 2-26-0000-217 228.36 800.00 571.64 
BYLAW ADVERTISING 2-26-0000-220 22.00 1,200.00 1,178.00 
BYLAW MEMBERSHIP 2-26-0000-221 0.00 200.00 200.00 
BYLAW PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2-26-0000-232 1,425.03 1,400.00 25.03-
BYLAW CONTRACTED VEHICLE REPAIRS 2-26-0000-255 0.00 400.00 400.00 
BYLAW INSURANCE 2-26-0000-274 453.36 450.00 3.36-
BYLAW GOODS 2-26-0000-500 328.44 1,200.00 871.56 
BYLAW PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-26-0000-521 457.98 1,600.00 1,142.02 
BYLAW VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-26-0000-523 18.33 500.00 481.67 
BYLAW WORK BILLED TO OTHERS 2-26-0000-998 502.40 3,000.00 2,497.60 

35,834.02 TOTAL BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT: 74,250.00 38,415.98 
DOG CONTROL

DOG CONTROL SALARIES 2-28-0000-110 5,243.16 11,700.00 6,456.84 
DOG CONTROL BENEFITS 2-28-0000-130 0.00 700.00 700.00 
DOG CONTROL NON T4 BENEFITS 2-28-0000-133 0.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 
DOG CONTROL POSTAGE 2-28-0000-215 540.00 700.00 160.00 
DOG CONTROL ADVERTISING 2-28-0000-220 0.00 400.00 400.00 
DOG CONTROL CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-28-0000-232 1,068.78 1,300.00 231.22 
DOG CONTROL GOODS 2-28-0000-500 0.00 600.00 600.00 
DOG CONTROL GRANT TO OTHER AGENCIES 2-28-0000-770 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 

11,851.94 TOTAL DOG CONTROL: 22,500.00 10,648.06 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 6 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

COMMON SERVICES

COMMON SERVICES SALARIES 2-31-0000-110 108,549.40 213,600.00 105,050.60 
COMMON SERVICES SEASONAL SALARIES 2-31-0000-111 948.42 3,500.00 2,551.58 
COMMON SERVICES EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2-31-0000-130 13,515.51 14,900.00 1,384.49 
COMMON SERVICES SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-31-0000-131 133.13 200.00 66.87 
COMMON SERVICES NON T4 BENEFITS 2-31-0000-133 31,837.64 41,200.00 9,362.36 
COMMON SERVICES TRAVEL 2-31-0000-211 0.00 500.00 500.00 
COMMON SERVICES TRAINING 2-31-0000-212 590.55 1,500.00 909.45 
COMMON SERVICES FREIGHT 2-31-0000-215 660.62 1,000.00 339.38 
COMMON SERVICES TELEPHONE 2-31-0000-217 1,125.66 3,000.00 1,874.34 
COMMON SERVICES ADVERTISING & PRINTI 2-31-0000-220 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 
COMMON SERVICES CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-31-0000-232 2,269.19 5,500.00 3,230.81 
COMMON SERVICES CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-31-0000-250 7,770.80 10,000.00 2,229.20 
COMMON SERV CONTRACTED EQUIPMENT REP 2-31-0000-253 999.53 20,000.00 19,000.47 
COMMON SERV CONTRACTED VEHICLE REPAI 2-31-0000-255 320.00 4,500.00 4,180.00 
COMMON SERVICES EQUIPMENT RENTAL OR 2-31-0000-263 9,613.89 26,322.00 16,708.11 
COMMON SERVICES INSURANCE 2-31-0000-274 24,552.72 26,050.00 1,497.28 
COMMON SERVICES GOODS 2-31-0000-500 10,160.10 14,400.00 4,239.90 
COMMON SERVICES PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-31-0000-521 9,440.70 41,700.00 32,259.30 
COMMON SERVICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2-31-0000-522 3,682.99 5,000.00 1,317.01 
COMMON SERVICES VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-31-0000-523 1,180.54 11,900.00 10,719.46 
COMMON SERVICES HEATING 2-31-0000-540 8,752.94 14,100.00 5,347.06 
COMMON SERVICES POWER 2-31-0000-541 4,697.93 11,300.00 6,602.07 
COMMON SERVICES INTEREST ON CAPITAL 2-31-0000-831 4,146.83 14,961.00 10,814.17 
COMMON SERVICES GROSS REC TO OPER- W 2-31-0000-963 1,059.70 3,000.00 1,940.30 

246,008.79 TOTAL COMMON SERVICES: 489,233.00 243,224.21 
STREETS & ROADS

S & R SALARIES 2-32-0000-110 26,299.21 73,900.00 47,600.79 
S & R SEASONAL SALARIES 2-32-0000-111 132.00 5,300.00 5,168.00 
S & R BENEFITS 2-32-0000-130 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
S & R SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-32-0000-131 0.00 400.00 400.00 
S & R NON T4 BENEFITS 2-32-0000-133 0.00 13,700.00 13,700.00 
S & R FREIGHT 2-32-0000-215 55.10 2,700.00 2,644.90 
S & R CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-32-0000-232 0.00 5,900.00 5,900.00 
S & R CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-32-0000-250 0.00 135,000.00 135,000.00 
S & R EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2-32-0000-253 2,969.61 7,500.00 4,530.39 
S & R VEHICLE REPAIRS 2-32-0000-255 119.79 1,500.00 1,380.21 
S & R GOODS 2-32-0000-500 2,286.77 39,500.00 37,213.23 
S & R EQUIPMENT GOODS 2-32-0000-522 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 
S & R VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-32-0000-523 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 
S & R STREET LIGHTS 2-32-0000-553 32,814.64 104,700.00 71,885.36 
S & R TRANSFER TO CAPITAL 2-32-0000-762 0.00 616,041.00 616,041.00 

64,677.12 TOTAL STREETS & ROADS: 1,016,141.00 951,463.88 
AIRPORT

AIRPORT SALARIES 2-33-0000-110 1,640.60 1,800.00 159.40 
AIRPORT SEASONAL SALARIES 2-33-0000-111 299.50 3,700.00 3,400.50 
AIRPORT BENEFITS 2-33-0000-130 0.00 100.00 100.00 
AIRPORT SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-33-0000-131 0.00 300.00 300.00 
AIRPORT NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-33-0000-133 0.00 400.00 400.00 
AIRPORT FREIGHT 2-33-0000-215 169.00 100.00 69.00-
AIRPORT TELEPHONE / RADIO LICENSE FE 2-33-0000-217 42.65 50.00 7.35 
AIRPORT CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-33-0000-232 238.10 2,100.00 1,861.90 
AIRPORT CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-33-0000-250 1,478.00 2,300.00 822.00 
AIRPORT VEHICLE REPAIRS 2-33-0000-255 0.00 200.00 200.00 
AIRPORT INSURANCE 2-33-0000-274 5,480.75 5,480.00 0.75-
AIRPORT GOODS 2-33-0000-500 3,204.51 1,000.00 2,204.51-
AIRPORT VEHICLE GOODS 2-33-0000-523 0.00 100.00 100.00 
AIRPORT HEATING 2-33-0000-540 944.53 2,100.00 1,155.47 
AIRPORT POWER 2-33-0000-541 2,374.40 7,100.00 4,725.60 
AIRPORT WATER & SEWER 2-33-0000-542 160.00 500.00 340.00 

16,032.04 TOTAL AIRPORT: 27,330.00 11,297.96 
WATER PLANT

WATER PLANT CHARGES FROM COMMISSION 2-41-0100-300 233,263.46 829,900.00 596,636.54 
WATER PLANT POWER 2-41-0100-541 7,173.71 25,800.00 18,626.29 

240,437.17 TOTAL WATER PLANT: 855,700.00 615,262.83 
WATER LINES & DISTRIBUTION



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 7 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

WATER LINES SALARIES 2-41-0200-110 39,045.69 130,300.00 91,254.31 
WATER LINES SEASONAL SALARIES 2-41-0200-111 132.00 2,900.00 2,768.00 
WATER LINES BENEFITS 2-41-0200-130 2,025.69 10,000.00 7,974.31 
WATER LINES SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-41-0200-131 0.00 200.00 200.00 
WATER LINES NON T4 BENEFITS 2-41-0200-133 3,106.99 25,400.00 22,293.01 
WATER LINES TRAVEL & TRAINING 2-41-0200-211 614.28 2,000.00 1,385.72 
WATER LINES FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-41-0200-215 2,718.23 9,200.00 6,481.77 
WATER LINES ADVERTISING 2-41-0200-220 0.00 1,600.00 1,600.00 
WATER LINES PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2-41-0200-232 3,885.04 8,100.00 4,214.96 
WATER LINES CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-41-0200-250 10,982.62 30,000.00 19,017.38 
WATER LINES GOODS 2-41-0200-500 5,323.82 23,300.00 17,976.18 
WATER LINES ADDED TO OPERATING RESER 2-41-0200-764 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 

67,834.36 TOTAL WATER LINES & DISTRIBUTION: 293,000.00 225,165.64 
SANITARY SEWERS

SEWERS SALARIES 2-42-0000-110 14,029.83 25,200.00 11,170.17 
SEWERS BENEFITS 2-42-0000-130 0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 
SEWERS NON T4 BENEFITS 2-42-0000-133 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
SEWERS FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-42-0000-215 0.00 500.00 500.00 
SEWERS LIFT STATION TELEPHONES 2-42-0000-217 782.56 1,800.00 1,017.44 
SEWERS CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-42-0000-250 435.00 72,500.00 72,065.00 
SEWERS INSURANCE 2-42-0000-274 3,012.58 3,010.00 2.58-
SEWERS GOODS 2-42-0000-500 14,029.15 16,500.00 2,470.85 
SEWERS HEATING 2-42-0000-540 566.58 1,200.00 633.42 
SEWERS POWER 2-42-0000-541 2,811.03 13,500.00 10,688.97 
SEWERS ADDED TO OPERATING RESERVE 2-42-0000-764 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 

35,666.73 TOTAL SANITARY SEWERS: 191,010.00 155,343.27 
GARBAGE

GARBAGE REMOVAL CONTRACT 2-43-0000-235 29,000.00 75,400.00 46,400.00 
GARBAGE GOODS 2-43-0000-500 0.00 400.00 400.00 

29,000.00 TOTAL GARBAGE: 75,800.00 46,800.00 
REGIONAL WASTE

REGIONAL WASTE BCWMC CONTRACT 2-44-0000-235 167,200.58 334,400.00 167,199.42 
167,200.58 TOTAL REGIONAL WASTE SYSTEM: 334,400.00 167,199.42 

FCSS

FCSS SALARIES 2-51-0100-110 15,439.80 31,200.00 15,760.20 
FCSS BENEFITS 2-51-0100-130 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 
FCSS NON T4 BENEFITS 2-51-0100-133 0.00 4,300.00 4,300.00 
FCSS TRAVEL 2-51-0100-211 0.00 900.00 900.00 
FCSS TRAINING 2-51-0100-212 0.00 600.00 600.00 
FCSS FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-51-0100-215 270.00 300.00 30.00 
FCSS ADVERTISING 2-51-0100-220 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 
FCSS SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 2-51-0100-221 120.00 500.00 380.00 
FCSS GOODS 2-51-0100-500 50.00 2,100.00 2,050.00 
FCSS GRANT TO SENIOR CIRCLE 2-51-0100-770 175.66 600.00 424.34 

16,055.46 TOTAL FCSS: 43,800.00 27,744.54 
FCSS COORDINATOR

COORDINATOR SALARIES 2-51-0200-110 10,304.19 26,600.00 16,295.81 
COORDINATOR PART TIME SALARIES 2-51-0200-111 0.00 1,700.00 1,700.00 
COORDINATOR BENEFITS 2-51-0200-130 0.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 
COORDINATOR PART TIME BENEFITS 2-51-0200-131 0.00 100.00 100.00 
COORDINATOR NON T4 BENEFITS 2-51-0200-133 0.00 6,400.00 6,400.00 
COORDINATOR TRAVEL 2-51-0200-211 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 
COORDINATOR TRAINING 2-51-0200-212 0.00 900.00 900.00 
COORDINATOR POSTAGE & FREIGHT 2-51-0200-215 317.04 300.00 17.04-
COORDINATOR TELEPHONE 2-51-0200-217 85.71 400.00 314.29 
COORDINATOR ADVERTISING 2-51-0200-220 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 
COORDINATOR SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIP 2-51-0200-221 25.00 100.00 75.00 
COORDINATOR GOODS 2-51-0200-500 25.00 1,200.00 1,175.00 
COORDINATOR PROGRAM EXPENSES 2-51-0200-510 18,535.76 78,700.00 60,164.24 
COORDINATOR PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-51-0200-521 95.24 600.00 504.76 
COORDINATOR OTHER 2-51-0200-990 0.00 100.00 100.00 

29,387.94 TOTAL COORDINATOR: 124,300.00 94,912.06 
YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT

FCSS YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT SALARIES 2-51-0300-110 6,313.32 24,600.00 18,286.68 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 8 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

FCSS YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT  BENEFITS 2-51-0300-130 1,133.95 2,300.00 1,166.05 
FCSS YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT  NON T4 BENE 2-51-0300-133 5,180.54 6,000.00 819.46 
FCSS YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT  ADVERTISING 2-51-0300-220 0.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 
FCSS YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT  GOODS 2-51-0300-500 0.00 700.00 700.00 

12,627.81 TOTAL FCSS YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT: 36,500.00 23,872.19 
COMMUNITY SERVICES VANS

CSD VAN CONTRACTED VEHICLE REPAIRS 2-51-0500-255 15.03 1,500.00 1,484.97 
CSD VAN INSURANCE 2-51-0500-274 3,097.05 3,100.00 2.95 
CSD VAN GOODS 2-51-0500-500 257.60 100.00 157.60-
CSD VAN PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-51-0500-521 0.00 100.00 100.00 
CSD VAN VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-51-0500-523 0.00 500.00 500.00 

3,369.68 TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES VANS: 5,300.00 1,930.32 
CEMETERY

CEMETERY SALARIES 2-56-0000-110 3,168.63 7,800.00 4,631.37 
CEMETERY SEASONAL SALARIES 2-56-0000-111 732.75 7,500.00 6,767.25 
CEMETERY BENEFITS 2-56-0000-130 0.00 600.00 600.00 
CEMETERY SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-56-0000-131 0.00 500.00 500.00 
CEMETERY NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-56-0000-133 0.00 1,600.00 1,600.00 
CEMETERY ADVERTISING 2-56-0000-220 0.00 200.00 200.00 
CEMETERY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2-56-0000-232 570.01 4,200.00 3,629.99 
CEMETERY CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-56-0000-250 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 
CEMETERY INSURANCE 2-56-0000-274 22.31 20.00 2.31-
CEMETERY GOODS 2-56-0000-500 64.56 5,000.00 4,935.44 
CEMETERY PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-56-0000-521 87.12 600.00 512.88 

4,645.38 TOTAL CEMETERY: 29,520.00 24,874.62 
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION

MPC GOODS 2-61-0100-500 0.00 500.00 500.00 
0.00 TOTAL MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 500.00 500.00 

COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING

COMMERCIAL OFFICE REPAIRS 2-61-0200-250 245.00 10,590.00 10,345.00 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE INSURANCE 2-61-0200-274 479.54 480.00 0.46 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE GOODS 2-61-0200-500 28.75 500.00 471.25 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE  HEATING 2-61-0200-540 683.82 1,700.00 1,016.18 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE POWER 2-61-0200-541 1,020.68 3,000.00 1,979.32 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE - TRANSFER TO CAPI 2-61-0200-762 0.00 3,930.00 3,930.00 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE - RECOVERIES TO OP 2-61-0200-963 186.98 3,800.00 3,613.02 

2,644.77 TOTAL COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING: 24,000.00 21,355.23 
TOURISM

TOURISM SALARIES 2-61-0300-110 10,032.80 21,200.00 11,167.20 
TOURISM BENEFITS 2-61-0300-130 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 
TOURISM NON T4 BENEFITS 2-61-0300-133 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 
TOURISM TRAVEL 2-61-0300-211 0.00 100.00 100.00 
TOURISM FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-61-0300-215 270.00 800.00 530.00 
TOURISM ADVERTISING 2-61-0300-220 375.00 2,600.00 2,225.00 
TOURISM SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 2-61-0300-221 1,433.04 1,400.00 33.04-
TOURISM CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-61-0300-232 0.00 100.00 100.00 
TOURISM GOODS 2-61-0300-500 0.00 500.00 500.00 

12,110.84 TOTAL TOURISM: 31,200.00 19,089.16 
BUSINESS & COMMUNICATIONS

B & C SALARIES 2-61-0400-110 40,131.67 84,900.00 44,768.33 
B & C BENEFITS 2-61-0400-130 4,033.26 6,000.00 1,966.74 
B & C NON T4 BENEFIT 2-61-0400-133 6,830.46 13,800.00 6,969.54 
B & C TRAVEL 2-61-0400-211 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
B & C TRAINING 2-61-0400-212 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
B & C FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-61-0400-215 270.00 300.00 30.00 
B & C TELEPHONES 2-61-0400-217 185.71 800.00 614.29 
B & C ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2-61-0400-220 0.00 2,300.00 2,300.00 
B & C SUBSCRIPTIONS & MEMBERSHIPS 2-61-0400-221 3,198.75 3,300.00 101.25 
B & C CONTRACTED PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 2-61-0400-232 21,450.00 56,500.00 35,050.00 
B & C INSURANCE 2-61-0400-274 118.60 120.00 1.40 
B & C GOODS 2-61-0400-500 89.94 5,000.00 4,910.06 
B & C PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-61-0400-521 0.00 500.00 500.00 
B & C POWER 2-61-0400-541 734.32 3,900.00 3,165.68 

77,042.71 TOTAL BUSINESS & COMMUNICATIONS: 179,420.00 102,377.29 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 9 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

VISITOR INFORMATION CENTRE

VIC SALARIES 2-62-0000-110 250.24 2,200.00 1,949.76 
VIC SEASONAL SALARIES 2-62-0000-111 190.75 2,500.00 2,309.25 
VIC BENEFITS 2-62-0000-130 0.00 200.00 200.00 
VIC SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-62-0000-131 0.00 200.00 200.00 
VIC NON T4 BENEFITS 2-62-0000-133 0.00 400.00 400.00 
VIC FREIGHT 2-62-0000-215 0.00 100.00 100.00 
VIC ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2-62-0000-220 0.00 900.00 900.00 
VIC CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-62-0000-232 1,060.00 2,000.00 940.00 
VIC CONTRACTED REPAIR 2-62-0000-250 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
VIC INSURANCE 2-62-0000-274 834.07 830.00 4.07-
VIC GOODS 2-62-0000-500 274.67 2,500.00 2,225.33 
VIC HEATING 2-62-0000-540 566.58 1,100.00 533.42 
VIC POWER 2-62-0000-541 489.54 2,600.00 2,110.46 
VIC WATER 2-62-0000-963 438.48 3,000.00 2,561.52 

4,104.33 TOTAL VISITOR INFORMATION CENTRE: 19,530.00 15,425.67 
SUBDIVISION

SUBDIVISION OTHER 2-66-0000-990 231.60 0.00 231.60-
231.60 TOTAL SUBDIVISION: 0.00 231.60-

COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD

COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD GOODS 2-71-0000-500 0.00 800.00 800.00 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD GRANTS 2-71-0000-770 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 

0.00 TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD: 3,800.00 3,800.00 
RECREATION

RECREATION SALARIES 2-72-0000-110 40,174.32 73,500.00 33,325.68 
RECREATION SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0000-111 2,138.19 2,200.00 61.81 
RECREATION BENEFITS 2-72-0000-130 4,440.77 4,900.00 459.23 
RECREATION SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0000-131 82.39 200.00 117.61 
RECREATION NON T4 BENEFITS 2-72-0000-133 8,763.65 8,500.00 263.65-
RECREATION TRAVEL 2-72-0000-211 0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 
RECREATION TRAINING 2-72-0000-212 935.35 3,800.00 2,864.65 
RECREATION FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-72-0000-215 294.00 300.00 6.00 
RECREATION TELEPHONE 2-72-0000-217 471.42 2,200.00 1,728.58 
RECREATION ADVERTISING 2-72-0000-220 6,935.00 3,200.00 3,735.00-
RECREATION SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 2-72-0000-221 420.00 800.00 380.00 
RECREATION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2-72-0000-232 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 
RECREATION INSURANCE 2-72-0000-274 9,286.50 9,290.00 3.50 
RECREATION GOODS 2-72-0000-500 960.39 2,400.00 1,439.61 
RECREATION PROGRAM EXPENSES 2-72-0000-510 1,333.33 1,000.00 333.33-
RECREATION PETROLEUM - CAR ALLOWANCE 2-72-0000-521 409.32 2,500.00 2,090.68 
RECREATION VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-72-0000-523 66.67 300.00 233.33 
RECREATION TRANSFER TO CAPITAL 2-72-0000-762 0.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 
RECREATION TRANSFERS (GRANTS) 2-72-0000-770 9,977.61 9,977.00 0.61-
RECREATION OTHER 2-72-0000-990 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

86,688.91 TOTAL RECREATION: 222,967.00 136,278.09 
SWIMMING & WADING POOLS

POOLS SALARIES 2-72-0100-110 4,320.44 12,200.00 7,879.56 
POOL SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0100-111 9,354.69 118,500.00 109,145.31 
POOLS BENEFITS 2-72-0100-130 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
POOL SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0100-131 537.78 8,100.00 7,562.22 
POOLS NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-72-0100-133 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 
POOLS TRAVEL 2-72-0100-211 0.00 600.00 600.00 
POOLS TRAINING 2-72-0100-212 445.00 2,000.00 1,555.00 
POOLS FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-72-0100-215 565.00 1,600.00 1,035.00 
POOLS TELEPHONE 2-72-0100-217 0.00 100.00 100.00 
POOLS ADVERTISING 2-72-0100-220 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 
POOL CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-72-0100-232 1,115.00 2,000.00 885.00 
POOLS CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0100-250 1,467.48 8,100.00 6,632.52 
POOLS INSURANCE 2-72-0100-274 6,013.12 6,010.00 3.12-
POOLS GOODS 2-72-0100-500 1,145.88 10,500.00 9,354.12 
POOL RETAIL GOODS 2-72-0100-501 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 
POOLS CHEMICALS 2-72-0100-531 0.00 16,100.00 16,100.00 
POOLS HEATING 2-72-0100-540 1,628.43 10,300.00 8,671.57 
POOLS POWER 2-72-0100-541 2,241.41 19,500.00 17,258.59 
POOLS GROSS RECOVERIES TO OPERATING 2-72-0100-963 60.60 4,600.00 4,539.40 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 10 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

28,894.83 TOTAL SWIMMING POOLS: 226,910.00 198,015.17 
ARENA

ARENA SALARIES 2-72-0200-110 30,924.24 118,700.00 87,775.76 
ARENA SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0200-111 2,272.77 18,600.00 16,327.23 
ARENA BENEFITS 2-72-0200-130 7,486.92 9,200.00 1,713.08 
ARENA SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0200-131 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 
ARENA NON T4 BENEFITS 2-72-0200-133 15,986.43 20,800.00 4,813.57 
ARENA FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-72-0200-215 270.00 800.00 530.00 
ARENA ADVERTISING & PRINTING 2-72-0200-220 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 
ARENA CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-72-0200-232 2,710.08 6,700.00 3,989.92 
ARENA CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0200-250 9,860.86 17,600.00 7,739.14 
ARENA CONTRACTED EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 2-72-0200-253 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
ARENA INSURANCE 2-72-0200-274 9,109.60 9,110.00 0.40 
ARENA GOODS 2-72-0200-500 1,033.09 17,700.00 16,666.91 
ARENA PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-72-0200-521 1,458.04 2,900.00 1,441.96 
ARENA HEATING 2-72-0200-540 8,956.31 21,600.00 12,643.69 
ARENA POWER 2-72-0200-541 6,172.13 18,700.00 12,527.87 
ARENA GROSS RECOVERIES TO OPERATING 2-72-0200-963 765.55 5,500.00 4,734.45 
ARENA ICE PLANT CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0201-250 0.00 10,800.00 10,800.00 
ARENA ICE PLANT GOODS 2-72-0201-500 0.00 500.00 500.00 
ARENA ICE PLANT POWER 2-72-0201-541 5,276.24 16,900.00 11,623.76 

102,282.26 TOTAL ARENA: 303,510.00 201,227.74 
PARKS SHOP

PARKS SHOP CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0300-250 4,828.42 5,300.00 471.58 
PARKS SHOP INSURANCE 2-72-0300-274 1,739.29 1,740.00 0.71 
PARKS SHOP GOODS 2-72-0300-500 916.59 1,500.00 583.41 
PARKS SHOP HEATING 2-72-0300-540 2,909.05 5,700.00 2,790.95 
PARKS SHOP POWER 2-72-0300-541 1,284.24 3,300.00 2,015.76 
PARKS SHOP GROSS RECOVERIES TO OPERA 2-72-0300-963 186.98 1,800.00 1,613.02 

11,864.57 TOTAL PARKS SHOP: 19,340.00 7,475.43 
CURLING RINK

CURLING RINK SALARIES 2-72-0400-110 1,024.80 4,400.00 3,375.20 
CURLING RINK SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0400-111 1,139.98 2,500.00 1,360.02 
CURLING RINK BENEFITS 2-72-0400-130 0.00 400.00 400.00 
CURLING RINK SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0400-131 0.00 200.00 200.00 
CURLING RINK NON T4 BENEFITS 2-72-0400-133 0.00 800.00 800.00 
CURLING RINK CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0400-250 3,055.66 6,900.00 3,844.34 
CURLING RINK INSURANCE 2-72-0400-274 6,040.26 6,040.00 0.26-
CURLING RINK GOODS 2-72-0400-500 148.98 1,500.00 1,351.02 
CURLING RINK HEATING 2-72-0400-540 5,699.47 13,500.00 7,800.53 
CURLING RINK POWER 2-72-0400-541 3,448.07 10,600.00 7,151.93 
CURLING RINK - SUBSIDY 2-72-0400-771 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 
CURLING RINK GROSS RECOV TO OPERATIN 2-72-0400-963 348.76 1,700.00 1,351.24 
CURLING RINK ICE PLANT REPAIRS 2-72-0401-250 0.00 10,800.00 10,800.00 
CURLING RINK ICE PLANT GOODS 2-72-0401-500 0.00 500.00 500.00 
CURLING RINK ICE PLANT POWER 2-72-0401-541 5,276.24 16,900.00 11,623.76 

26,182.22 TOTAL CURLING RINK: 84,240.00 58,057.78 
BALL DIAMONDS

BALL DIAMOND SALARIES 2-72-0500-110 1,889.91 6,700.00 4,810.09 
BALL DIAMOND SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0500-111 2,195.66 6,200.00 4,004.34 
BALL DIAMOND BENEFITS 2-72-0500-130 0.00 500.00 500.00 
BALL DIAMOND SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0500-131 0.00 400.00 400.00 
BALL DIAMONDS NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-72-0500-133 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 
BALL DIAMOND CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0500-250 930.37 1,000.00 69.63 
BALL DIAMOND GOODS 2-72-0500-500 9,499.24 10,500.00 1,000.76 
BALL DIAMOND POWER 2-72-0500-541 301.67 1,010.00 708.33 
BALL DIAMONDS GROSS RECOV FROM OPERA 2-72-0500-963 1,021.17 6,800.00 5,778.83 

15,838.02 TOTAL BALL DIAMONDS: 34,310.00 18,471.98 
GOLF COURSE

GOLF COURSE INSURANCE 2-72-0600-274 2,562.83 2,560.00 2.83-
2,562.83 TOTAL GOLF COURSE: 2,560.00 2.83-

FOX LAKE PARK

FOX LAKE SALARIES 2-72-0700-110 1,739.98 4,400.00 2,660.02 
FOX LAKE SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0700-111 1,170.71 1,200.00 29.29 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 11 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

FOX LAKE BENEFITS 2-72-0700-130 0.00 400.00 400.00 
FOX LAKE SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0700-131 0.00 100.00 100.00 
FOX LAKE NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-72-0700-133 0.00 800.00 800.00 
FOX LAKE FREIGHT 2-72-0700-215 0.00 200.00 200.00 
FOX LAKE ADVERTISING 2-72-0700-220 395.00 1,500.00 1,105.00 
FOX LAKE CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-72-0700-232 4,278.75 30,400.00 26,121.25 
FOX LAKE CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0700-250 105.00 7,000.00 6,895.00 
FOX LAKE INSURANCE 2-72-0700-274 249.70 250.00 0.30 
FOX LAKE GOODS 2-72-0700-500 2,759.96 5,000.00 2,240.04 
FOX LAKE RETAIL ITEMS - ICE & NOVELT 2-72-0700-501 0.00 400.00 400.00 
FOX LAKE PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-72-0700-521 0.00 600.00 600.00 
FOX LAKE HEAT 2-72-0700-540 179.20 600.00 420.80 
FOX LAKE POWER 2-72-0700-541 206.64- 5,600.00 5,806.64 
FOX LAKE TO FUNCTION CAPITAL RESERVE 2-72-0700-764 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 
FOX LAKE GROSS RECOVERIES FROM OPERA 2-72-0700-963 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 

10,671.66 TOTAL FOX LAKE PARK: 96,450.00 85,778.34 
PARKS

PARKS SALARIES 2-72-0800-110 48,567.11 63,400.00 14,832.89 
PARKS SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-0800-111 25,717.75 52,200.00 26,482.25 
PARKS BENEFITS 2-72-0800-130 294.06 5,000.00 4,705.94 
PARKS SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-0800-131 2,373.54 3,700.00 1,326.46 
PARKS NON T4 BENEFITS 2-72-0800-133 0.00 11,200.00 11,200.00 
PARKS FREIGHT 2-72-0800-215 194.24 800.00 605.76 
PARKS CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-0800-250 446.67 24,100.00 23,653.33 
PARKS EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 2-72-0800-253 462.06 6,000.00 5,537.94 
PARKS CONTRACTED VEHICLE REPAIRS 2-72-0800-255 0.00 3,200.00 3,200.00 
PARKS INSURANCE 2-72-0800-274 3,994.98 4,000.00 5.02 
PARKS GOODS 2-72-0800-500 13,812.77 25,100.00 11,287.23 
PARKS PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 2-72-0800-521 837.98 9,300.00 8,462.02 
PARKS EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2-72-0800-522 0.00 3,400.00 3,400.00 
PARKS VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2-72-0800-523 1,206.69 3,100.00 1,893.31 
PARKS POWER 2-72-0800-541 955.90 2,900.00 1,944.10 
PARKS RECOVERIES TO OPERATING 2-72-0800-963 269.71 7,100.00 6,830.29 
PARKS OTHER 2-72-0800-990 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 

99,133.46 TOTAL PARKS: 225,500.00 126,366.54 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM

PLAYGROUND PROGRAM SALARIES 2-72-1000-110 522.58 2,100.00 1,577.42 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-1000-111 2,606.28 19,800.00 17,193.72 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM BENEFITS 2-72-1000-130 0.00 200.00 200.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-1000-131 176.60 1,400.00 1,223.40 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM NON T4 BENEFITS 2-72-1000-133 0.00 500.00 500.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM TRAVEL 2-72-1000-211 0.00 300.00 300.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM TRAINING 2-72-1000-212 0.00 600.00 600.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-72-1000-215 135.00 140.00 5.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM TELEPHONE 2-72-1000-217 0.00 120.00 120.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM ADVERTISING 2-72-1000-220 0.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM CONTRACTED SERVIC 2-72-1000-232 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 
PLAYGROUND PROGRAM GOODS 2-72-1000-500 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 

3,440.46 TOTAL PLAYGROUND PROGRAM: 32,060.00 28,619.54 
SPRAY PARK

SPRAY PARK SALARIES 2-72-1200-110 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 
SPRAY PARK SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-1200-111 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 
SPRAY PARK EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2-72-1200-130 0.00 100.00 100.00 
SPRAY PARK SEASONAL EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 2-72-1200-131 0.00 100.00 100.00 
SPRAY PARK NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-72-1200-133 0.00 200.00 200.00 
SPRAY PARK FREIGHT 2-72-1200-215 0.00 200.00 200.00 
SPRAY PARK CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-72-1200-250 0.00 500.00 500.00 
SPRAY PARK INSURANCE 2-72-1200-274 0.00 500.00 500.00 
SPRAY PARK GOODS 2-72-1200-500 200.73 500.00 299.27 
SPRAY PARK CHEMICALS 2-72-1200-531 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 
SPRAY PARK HEAT 2-72-1200-540 0.00 300.00 300.00 
SPRAY PARK POWER 2-72-1200-541 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
SPRAY PARK RECOVERIES TO OPERATING 2-72-1200-963 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 

200.73 TOTAL SPRAY PARK: 8,000.00 7,799.27 
KING HUNTER PARK

KING HUNTER PARK SALARIES 2-72-1300-110 1,068.56 6,700.00 5,631.44 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 12 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

KING HUNTER PARK SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-1300-111 1,510.25 14,900.00 13,389.75 
KING HUNTER PARK EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2-72-1300-130 0.00 500.00 500.00 
KING HUNTER PARK SEASONAL EMPL BENEF 2-72-1300-131 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
KING HUNTER PARK EMP NON T4 BENEFITS 2-72-1300-133 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 
KING HUNTER PARK REPAIRS & MAINTENAN 2-72-1300-250 1,623.69 4,500.00 2,876.31 
KING HUNTER PARK INSURANCE 2-72-1300-274 142.78 140.00 2.78-
KING HUNTER PARK GOODS 2-72-1300-500 179.96 11,000.00 10,820.04 
KING HUNTER PARK POWER 2-72-1300-541 606.48 1,700.00 1,093.52 
KING HUNTER PARK ADDED TO OPERATING 2-72-1300-764 0.00 15,195.00 15,195.00 
KING HUNTER PARK RECOVERIES TO OPERA 2-72-1300-963 110.00 3,900.00 3,790.00 

5,241.72 TOTAL KING HUNTER PARK: 60,735.00 55,493.28 
SOCCER FIELDS

SOCCER FIELD SALARIES 2-72-1400-110 485.32 2,200.00 1,714.68 
SOCCER FIELD SEASONAL SALARIES 2-72-1400-111 178.57 3,700.00 3,521.43 
SOCCER FIELD BENEFITS 2-72-1400-130 0.00 200.00 200.00 
SOCCER FIELD SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-72-1400-131 0.00 300.00 300.00 
SOCCER FIELD NON T-4 BENEFITS 2-72-1400-133 0.00 400.00 400.00 
SOCCER FIELD GOODS 2-72-1400-500 1,494.63 2,000.00 505.37 
SOCCER FIELDS POWER 2-72-1400-541 301.67 1,000.00 698.33 
SOCCER FIELD RECOVERIES FROM OPERATI 2-72-1400-963 516.01 1,600.00 1,083.99 

2,976.20 TOTAL SOCCER FIELDS: 11,400.00 8,423.80 
MUSEUM

MUSEUM GAS 2-74-0100-540 2,061.80 4,200.00 2,138.20 
MUSEUM POWER 2-74-0100-541 1,095.27 3,000.00 1,904.73 
MUSEUM GRANT 2-74-0100-770 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 

10,157.07 TOTAL MUSEUM: 14,200.00 4,042.93 
LIBRARY

LIBRARY TELEPHONE 2-74-0200-217 758.58 1,800.00 1,041.42 
LIBRARY ADVERTISING 2-74-0200-220 0.00 800.00 800.00 
LIBRARY CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-74-0200-250 150.00 14,400.00 14,250.00 
LIBRARY INSURANCE 2-74-0200-274 3,177.21 3,180.00 2.79 
LIBRARY GOODS 2-74-0200-500 140.90 700.00 559.10 
LIBRARY HEATING 2-74-0200-540 2,084.01 4,400.00 2,315.99 
LIBRARY POWER 2-74-0200-541 1,123.42 4,900.00 3,776.58 
LIBRARY GRANTS 2-74-0200-770 15,968.16 21,100.00 5,131.84 
LIBRARY PERSONNEL GRANTS 2-74-0200-771 33,344.80 66,700.00 33,355.20 
LIBRARY GROSS RECOVERIES TO OPERATIN 2-74-0200-963 354.15 1,400.00 1,045.85 

57,101.23 TOTAL LIBRARY: 119,380.00 62,278.77 
CENTENNIAL PLACE

RCSC SALARIES 2-74-0800-110 9,470.38 42,900.00 33,429.62 
RCSC SEASONAL / PART TIME STAFF 2-74-0800-111 10,602.38 35,100.00 24,497.62 
RCSC BENEFITS 2-74-0800-130 1,562.99 3,700.00 2,137.01 
RCSC SEASONAL / PART TIME BENEFITS 2-74-0800-131 226.28 2,500.00 2,273.72 
RCSC NON T4 BENEFITS 2-74-0800-133 4,461.02 10,900.00 6,438.98 
RCSC STAFF TRAINING 2-74-0800-212 145.00 500.00 355.00 
RCSC FREIGHT 2-74-0800-215 270.00 300.00 30.00 
RCSC TELEPHONE 2-74-0800-217 334.12 900.00 565.88 
RCSC ADVERTISING 2-74-0800-220 0.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 
RCSC CONTRACTED PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 2-74-0800-232 8,875.32 11,300.00 2,424.68 
RCSC CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-74-0800-250 243.51 18,400.00 18,156.49 
RCSC INSURANCE 2-74-0800-274 4,364.61 4,360.00 4.61-
RCSC GOODS 2-74-0800-500 551.51 10,100.00 9,548.49 
RCSC HEATING 2-74-0800-540 4,109.00 7,700.00 3,591.00 
RCSC POWER 2-74-0800-541 3,682.24 14,300.00 10,617.76 
RCSC ADDED TO OPERATING RESERVE 2-74-0800-764 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 
RCSC WATER - RECOVERIES FROM OPERATI 2-74-0800-963 229.43 1,100.00 870.57 
RCSC - HFC GRANT 2-74-0801-770 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 

51,627.79 TOTAL CENTENNIAL PLACE: 175,460.00 123,832.21 
COMMUNITY CENTRE

COMMUNITY CENTRE SALARIES 2-74-0900-110 1,596.71 2,200.00 603.29 
COMMUNITY CENTRE SEASONAL SALARIES 2-74-0900-111 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 
COMMUNITY CENTRE BENEFITS 2-74-0900-130 0.00 200.00 200.00 
COMMUNITY CENTRE SEASONAL BENEFITS 2-74-0900-131 0.00 100.00 100.00 
COMMUNITY CENTRE NON T4 BENEFITS 2-74-0900-133 0.00 400.00 400.00 
COMMUNITY CENTRE FREIGHT & POSTAGE 2-74-0900-215 270.00 500.00 230.00 



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 13 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

COMMUNITY CENTRE TELEPHONE 2-74-0900-217 359.34 800.00 440.66 
COMMUNITY CENTRE ADVERTISING 2-74-0900-220 0.00 300.00 300.00 
COMMUNITY CENTRE CONTRACTED SERVICES 2-74-0900-232 2,223.00 18,600.00 16,377.00 
COMMUNITY CENTRE CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-74-0900-250 538.19 7,000.00 6,461.81 
COMMUNITY CENTRE INSURANCE 2-74-0900-274 6,510.67 6,510.00 0.67-
COMMUNITY CENTRE GOODS 2-74-0900-500 186.28 4,000.00 3,813.72 
COMMUNITY CENTRE HEAT 2-74-0900-540 2,333.60 4,900.00 2,566.40 
COMMUNITY CENTRE POWER 2-74-0900-541 1,946.47 8,300.00 6,353.53 
COMMUNITY CENTRE GROSS REC TO OPERAT 2-74-0900-963 365.18 1,200.00 834.82 

16,329.44 TOTAL COMMUNITY CENTRE: 56,210.00 39,880.56 
LIONS HALL

LIONS HALL CONTRACTED REPAIRS 2-74-1000-250 354.03 1,000.00 645.97 
LIONS HALL INSURANCE 2-74-1000-274 654.01 650.00 4.01-
LIONS HALL GOODS 2-74-1000-500 231.01 500.00 268.99 
LIONS HALL HEAT 2-74-1000-540 1,246.70 1,800.00 553.30 
LIONS HALL POWER 2-74-1000-541 550.37 1,400.00 849.63 
LIONS HALL WATER - RECOVERIES FROM O 2-74-1000-963 175.66 600.00 424.34 

3,211.78 TOTAL LIONS HALL: 5,950.00 2,738.22 
GOVERNMENT REQUISITIONS

GOVERNMENT REQUISITION - SCHOOL 2-77-0000-741 166,483.86 668,700.00 502,216.14 
GOVERNMENT REQUISITION - ACADIA FOUN 2-77-0000-754 63,479.00 153,300.00 89,821.00 
GOVERNMENT REQUISITION - DESIGNATED 2-77-0000-755 0.00 643.00 643.00 
PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 2-77-0000-757 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 

229,962.86 TOTAL GOVERNMENT REQUISITIONS: 825,143.00 595,180.14 
2,404,050.53 TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 8,200,784.00 5,796,733.47 
1,339,051.52 TOTAL REVENUE & EXPENSES: 660,600.00- 1,999,651.52-



Report: N:\live\gl\glreprtx.p TOWN OF HANNA Page: 14 of 14
Version: 020001-l58.73.00REVENUE AND EXPENSE (HEADER - DETAIL - TOTALS) WITHOUT ENCUMBRANCE - COUNCIL MEETING REVENUE & EXPENSE Date: 03/06/2021
User ID: RHONDA For Fiscal Year 2021, Period 1 to 5 and Budget Cycle Final and Prd 1 to 5 Actuals Time: 17:24:12

For All Revenue, Expense Accounts Transactions Entered From 01/01/2021
Zero Balance Accounts NOT Included To 31/05/2021

Description Account YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance

ASSETS - OPERATING

FIRE DEPARTMENT

FIRE MACHINES, EQUIPMENT 8-23-0000-630 0.00 38,600.00 38,600.00 
0.00 TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT: 38,600.00 38,600.00 

COMMON SERVICES

COMMON SERV MACHINES, EQUIPMENT 8-31-0000-630 120,647.15 193,000.00 72,352.85 
120,647.15 TOTAL COMMON SERVICES DEPARTMENT: 193,000.00 72,352.85 

STREETS & ROADS

S & R MACHINES, EQUIPMENT 8-32-0000-630 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 
0.00 TOTAL STREETS & ROADS: 15,000.00 15,000.00 

AIRPORT

AIRPORT EQUIPMENT 8-33-0000-630 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 
0.00 TOTAL AIRPORT: 100,000.00 100,000.00 

WATER DEPARTMENT

WATER MACHINES, EQUIPMENT 8-41-0000-630 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 
0.00 TOTAL WATER DEPARTMENT: 10,000.00 10,000.00 

CEMETERY

CEMETERY ENGINEERING STRUCTURES 8-56-0000-610 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 
0.00 TOTAL CEMETERY: 17,000.00 17,000.00 

RECREATION

RECREATION POOL ENGINEERING STRUCTUR 8-72-0100-610 23,338.56 35,000.00 11,661.44 
RECREATION POOL BUILDINGS 8-72-0100-620 3,928.64 83,000.00 79,071.36 
RECREATION POOL MACHINES & EQUIPMENT 8-72-0100-630 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 
RECREATION ARENA MACHINES & EQUIPMEN 8-72-0200-630 0.00 37,000.00 37,000.00 
RECREATION CURLING RINK BUILDING 8-72-0400-620 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 
RECREATION FOX LAKE PARK ENGINEERING 8-72-0700-610 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 
RECREATION PARKS PLAYGROUND ENGINEER 8-72-0800-610 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 

27,267.20 TOTAL RECREATION: 265,000.00 237,732.80 
CULTURE

LIBRARY BUILDING 8-74-0200-610 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 
RCSC BUILDING - CENTENNIAL PLACE 8-74-0800-620 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 

0.00 TOTAL CULTURE: 22,000.00 22,000.00 
147,914.35 TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCES APPLIED: 660,600.00 512,685.65 
147,914.35 GRAND TOTAL OF ALL ACCOUNTS: 660,600.00 512,685.65 

1,486,965.87 REPORT TOTALS: 0.00 1,486,965.87-

*** End of Report ***



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

Date: June 8, 2021       Agenda Item No: 06.03 
 

Item Title 
 

Budget Overview 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council accepts the Budget Overview for May 2021 for information. 
 

Background 
 
The Budget Overview consolidates information from the Statement of Revenues & Expenses report 
into categories that compare the revenue and expenses for each department of the Town.   To see the 
detail for each department, refer to the Statement of Revenues & Expenses.    
 
The Budget Overview provides the adopted budget figures and the actual month end totals for each 
department.    The final column compares the figures between budget and actual expense.    
 
As with the Statement of Revenues & Expenses, the budget figures have been updated from the 2021 
Operating and Capital budgets approved by Council at the May 26, 2021 Special Council Meeting.    
The capital budget figures have been split from the operating in those departments where capital items 
are in the budget. 
 
The overview reflects the revenues and expenses to May 31, 2021.    
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information presented. 
 

Communications 
 
N/A 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\06.03 budget overview.docx 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 

Attachments 
 
1. Budget Overview – May 2021 

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



TOWN OF HANNA Page  1

MAY 2021 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2021 BUDGET 2021 2021 REVENUE 2021 2021 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 11, 2021 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

GENERAL MUNICIPAL -3,307,002 -195,438 -3,111,564

RESERVES -66,967 0

REQUISITIONS -822,638 822,643 0 229,963 592,680

SURPLUS 2,500 0 2,500

CONTINGENCY 0 0 0

-3,371,464 34,525

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION -447,700 -9,744 -437,956

COUNCIL 130,150 39,082 91,068

ADMINISTRATION 943,735 395,400 548,335

626,185 424,739

HANNA WAKE PROGRAM 0 0 0

STUDENT EXCHANGE 0 0 0

0 0

TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY -10,100 -6,000 -4,100

TAX RECOVERY PROPERTY 10,100 2,240 7,860

0 -3,760

POLICE -11,600 -2,246 -9,354

POLICE 48,500 48,500 0

36,900 46,254

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT 0 0 0

SAFETY & RISK MNGMNT 4,750 149 4,601

4,750 149

FIRE -575,386 -33,763 -541,624

FIRE 647,290 77,003 570,287

FIRE - CAPITAL 38,600 0 38,600

110,504 43,241

FIRE - ECETP -8,500 0 -8,500

FIRE - ECETP 8,500 400 8,100

0 400

DISASTER SERVICES -3,250 0 -3,250

DISASTER SERV 6,200 145 6,055

2,950 145

BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT -24,100 -18,364 -5,736

BYLAW 74,250 35,834 38,416

50,150 17,470

DOG CONTROL -4,400 -4,780 380

ANIMAL CONTROL 22,500 11,852 10,648

18,100 7,072



TOWN OF HANNA Page  2

MAY 2021 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2021 BUDGET 2021 2021 REVENUE 2021 2021 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 11, 2021 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

PUBLIC WORKS -75,100 0 -75,100

PUBLIC WORKS 489,233  246,009 243,224

PUBLIC WORKS - CAPITAL 193,000  120,647 72,353

607,133 366,656

STREETS & ROADS 0 0 0

STREETS & ROADS CAPITAL -616,041 0 -616,041

STREETS & ROADS 1,016,141 64,677 951,464

S & R - CAPITAL 15,000 0 15,000

415,100 64,677

AIRPORT -105,165 -2,653 -102,512

AIRPORT 27,330 16,032 11,298

AIRPORT CAPITAL 100,000 0 100,000

22,165 13,379

WATER 0

TREATMENT -1,200,500 -337,809 -862,691

       TREATMENT 855,700 240,437 615,263

LINES & DISTRIBUTION 0 -310 310

     LINES & DISTRIBUTION 293,000 67,834 225,166

     WATER DIST - CAPITAL METER 10,000 0 10,000

-41,800 -29,848

SANITARY SEWERS -297,600 -84,697 -212,903

SEWERS 191,010 35,667 155,343

SEWER - CAPITAL 0 0 0

-106,590 -49,031

GARBAGE -74,300 -25,127 -49,173

GARBAGE 75,800 29,000 46,800

1,500 3,873

REGIONAL WASTE SYSTEM -336,400 -99,908 -236,492

ANNUAL CONTRACT 334,400 167,201 167,199

-2,000 67,293



TOWN OF HANNA Page  3

MAY 2021 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2021 BUDGET 2021 2021 REVENUE 2021 2021 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 11, 2021 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

F.C.S.S. -114,798 -39,016 -75,782

ADMINISTRATION 43,800 16,055 27,745

PROGRAMS 124,300 29,388 94,912

YOUTH CLUB SUPPORT 36,500 12,628 23,872

VAN OPERATIONS 5,300 3,370 1,930

95,102 22,424

CEMETERY -13,900 -12,208 -1,692

CEMETERY 29,520 4,645 24,875

CEMETERY CAPITAL 17,000 0 17,000

32,620 -7,563

MUNCIPAL PLANNING COMM 0 0 0

MPC 500 0 500

500 0

COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING -24,000 -24,000 0

OFFICE BUILDING 24,000 2,645 21,355

0 -21,355

TOURISM 0 0 0

TOURISM 31,200 12,111 19,089

31,200 12,111

BUSINESS -10,000 0 -10,000

& COMMUNICATION 179,420 77,043 102,377

(WAS ECONOMIC DEV) 169,420 77,043

VISITOR INFORMATION 0 0 0

BOOTH 19,530 4,104 15,426

19,530 4,104

SUBDIVISION 0 -61,593 61,593

SUBDIVISION 0 232 -232

SUBDIVISION - CAPITAL 0 0 0

0 -61,361



TOWN OF HANNA Page  4

MAY 2021 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2021 BUDGET 2021 2021 REVENUE 2021 2021 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 11, 2021 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

RECREATION -237,100 -20 -237,080

CS BOARD 3,800 0 3,800

RECREATION 222,967 86,689 136,278

PARKS SHOP 19,340 11,865 7,475

COMMUNITIES IN BLOOM 0 0 0

9,007 98,533

SWIMMING POOLS -150,800 -35,276 -115,524

POOLS 226,910 28,895 198,015

POOLS - CAPITAL 128,000 27,267 100,733

204,110 20,886

ARENA -90,450 -15,649 -74,801

ARENA 275,310 97,006 178,304

ICE PLANT 28,200 5,276

ARENA - CAPITAL 37,000 0 37,000

250,060 86,633

CURLING RINK -28,500 0 -28,500

CURLING RINK 56,040 20,906 35,134

ICE PLANT 28,200 5,276

C RINK - CAPITAL 10,000 0 10,000

65,740 26,182

BALL DIAMONDS -5,100 0 -5,100

BALL DIAMONDS 34,310 15,838 18,472

29,210 15,838

GOLF COURSE 0 0 0

GOLF COURSE 2,560 2,563 -3

2,560 2,563

FOX LAKE  PARK -71,700 -9,079 -62,621

FLP 96,450 10,672 85,778

FLP - CAPITAL 15,000 0 15,000

39,750 1,592

PARKS -25,595 -400 -25,195

PARKS 225,500 99,133 126,367

PARKS - CAPITAL 75,000 0 75,000

PIONEER PARK 60,735 -15,195 5,242 55,493

SPRAY PARK 8,000 201 7,799

343,640 104,176

SUMMER YOUTH -2,500 -5,000 2,500

PROGRAM 32,060 3,440 28,620

29,560 -1,560

SOCCER FIELDS -2,100 0 -2,100

SOCCER FIELDS 11,400 2,976 8,424

9,300 2,976



TOWN OF HANNA Page  5

MAY 2021 BUDGET OVERVIEW - OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

 Council may use the Revenue & Expense Report (06.02) to review more detailed entries for each department 

2021 BUDGET 2021 2021 REVENUE 2021 2021 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

Adopted May 11, 2021 BUDGET BUDGET LESS ACTUAL ACTUAL LESS BUDGET TO

REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES EXPENSES ACTUAL

MUSEUM 0 0 0

MUSEUM 14,200 10,157 4,043

14,200 10,157

LIBRARY -10,000 0 -10,000

LIBRARY 119,380 57,101 62,279

LIBRARY - CAPITAL 10,000 0 10,000

119,380 57,101

CENTENNIAL PLACE -64,392 -16,573 -47,819

CENTENNIAL PLACE 175,460 51,628 123,832

CENTENNIAL PLACE CAPITAL 12,000 0 12,000

123,068 35,054

COMMUNITY CENTRE -22,500 -10,000 -12,500

CENTRE 56,210 16,329 39,881

CENTRE CAPITAL 0 0 0

33,710 6,329

LIONS HALL -1,200 -150 -1,050

LIONS HALL 5,950 3,212 2,738

4,750 3,062

RESERVES 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0

TOTAL REVENUE -8,861,384 -1,064,999 -7,796,385

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,861,384 2,551,965 6,309,419

TOTAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 1 1,486,966



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

Date: June 8, 2021           Agenda Item No: 08.00 
 

Item Title 
 

Senior Administrative Officials Reports 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council accepts the Senior Administrative Officials reports 8.01 – 8.05 as presented for 
information. 
 

Background 
 
Senior Administration prepare reports on the highlights and activities of their department since the last 
Council meeting for Council’s information.   Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek 
clarification on any information presented.    
 
If a written report is not submitted, members of Senior Administration attend Council meetings to 
provide a verbal report. 
 

Communications 
 
Highlights of the reports may be communicated in the newsletter as well as on the Town website and 
through the Town Social Media Program. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\08.00 senior administrative officials .docx 

Attachments 
 
1. Chief Administrative Officer 
2. Director of Business & Communication 
3. Director of Community Services  
4. Director of Protective Services 
5. Director of Public Works 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



1 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 8, 2021 
 
To: Mayor & Council  
 
From:  Kim Neill 
 Chief Administrative Officer  
 
Re: CAO Report – June 8, 2021 Council Meeting 
 
 
1. Tax Recovery Properties 
 
Administration has 206 Fox Lake Trail listed for sale with the Town realtor. 
 
Cactus Corridor (Mark Nikota) has been working with Administration on the demolition of 
the Town owned property located at 123 – 2nd Avenue West (former Central Meat property) 
and two privately held buildings that require demolition.  Cactus Corridor has taken the lead 
on this project with the ability to use some of the grant funds received under the Hanna 
Community Development Project.  Following a recent RFP posted on the Alberta 
Purchasing Connection for proposals to conduct and complete hazard material 
assessments for those three buildings as the first step in the demolition process, 14 
proposals were received, and the project awarded to Ecoabate Environmental Solutions.   
 
The Hanna Fire Chief entered the Central Meats Property at 123 – 2nd Avenue West and 
indicated the main support beam for the second floor has snapped and that in his opinion 
the facility is unsafe for anyone to enter. Administration is working with OH&S to review 
options for hazardous material removal and there may be an option to not remove any of 
the hazardous material, but different measures of demolition will be required when taking 
the building down. 
 
Ecoabate Environmental Solutions were in Town from May 31 – June 2nd doing their 
evaluation and testing for hazardous materials on the three large buildings identified above 
and Administration included the residential property located at 206 Fox Lake Trail for a total 
of 4 properties being investigated for hazardous material. It is anticipated that the initial 
Hazard Materials Report will be provided later this week.  This report will also include an 
estimated cost of hazard material removal and demolition for each of the properties. 
 
The next steps will be to establish a funding plan for the demolition of these buildings, two 
of which are currently Town owned properties, one property in the Tax Recovery Process 
with every intention of letting the property go to auction and one property currently owned 
privately and in good standing with taxes owing.  
 
2. CN Reservoir Fish Stocking Update 
 
Administration has been in contact with Levi Neufeld with Fish & Wildlife and all the 
information that was collected to investigate the potential stocking of the CN Reservoir has 
been forwarded to Alberta Fisheries Biologists.  Levi has indicated he is not optimistic that 



2 
 

it will be considered for stocking as the oxygen levels when tested were extremely low. Levi 
indicated that the biologists will be in Hanna in mid-June, and he hopes to show them the 
reservoir and talk about the potential of stocking. 
 
Meetings Attended: 
 
• Covid 19 Update – Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health – May 12th, 19th, 26th & 

June 2nd    
• GFL Public Engagement Session – May 19th  
• Business Hub – Economic Development Collaboration – May 25th  
• Council Information Meeting – May 26th 
• ICS 300 Course – June 1st & June 8th 
 
Upcoming Events: 
 
• Asset Management Training – June 14th  
• ICS 300 Course – June 15th  
• Council Information Meeting – June 30th  
• Business Hub – Economic Development Collaboration – July 6th   
       



Director of Community Services Council Report 
Respectfully submitted by Gwen Snell 

June 8, 2021  
 
The following highlights are provided for council information.   If you have any questions 
or would like more information on the department, I would be happy to respond. 
 
General/ Facilities/Parks Overview  

 
• Swimming Pool opened for the May long weekend with a cool weekend, which 

did affect our attendance and resulted in lower numbers coming out.  However, 
the second weekend we reached capacity for patrons and had to limit access for 
a short time.  

• We have had some issues with the chlorinator pumps at the pool but our staff 
have been able to order replacements and look after the installation.    

• Mr. Larry Golby provided an inspection and assessment of our ball diamonds, 
complete with a formal report.   He came to our community and met with staff 
and representatives of the Hanna Minor Ball Association regarding the condition 
of our ball diamonds and possible improvements.   Mr. Golby agreed that the 
best action plan may be to concentrate on one ball diamond per season and 
complete the necessary upgrading in this manner.   He did state that our 
diamonds are in very good shape and commended our staff for their work with 
maintenance and floating the diamonds.  

• Residents have noticed the use of tree bags around the parks this spring.  These 
bags allow us to target water for the trees and also saves time spent waiting to 
water without the bags.  The trees bags do not stay in one place, but move 
according to need.    

• Weekly facility inspections and minor repairs are being completed.  
• We have assisted with the delivery of picnic tables as requested.  
• Our department continues to work on updating our documents, schedules, etc.  

with new dates and rebranding.  
 

 
 
Hanna Agricultural Society Pocket Park – features donated bench and grouping of trees at the VIC.  



 

 
 

Before and after pictures showing the on-going maintenance/care required in our public parks. 
 
 

 
 

Adopt a Tree Program – tree replacement on Palliser Trail (left) and new planting of an Ohio Buckeye  
tree donated in Memory of Doug Todd and located in “Block 58” across from JC Charyk School. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Hector King Hunter Park (left) and Kin Park (Turtle Park) (right) 
 
 
 

 
 

Tree replacement at VIC (left) and irrigation work at RCMP Park by Spray Park (right) 
 
 
Covid Step 2 Re-launch  
 

• Our department continues to adjust and adapt with the changing regulations. 
Kiddies Korner modified their year and will continue their program until June11th.  

• Centennial Place has remained closed for other users due to covid restrictions.  
• Summer Programs and events are being planned with Covid protocols in place.  



 
Hanna Spray Park Update 
 

• PlayQuest staff will be here this week to complete the commissioning of the 
spray park.  This will include a day of training for our crew on Thursday.   

• PlayQuest will be back the week of June 11th to complete the rubberized surface.   
• Our crew has completed the installation of irrigation lines for the grass areas 

surrounding the spray park.   We did some initial seeding so when we do the final 
top dressing we are hopeful that we get a good catch for grass.  

• We are planning to have a “soft” opening of the spray park prior to July 1st but are 
including it with our July 1st celebrations.    

• Grand Opening will be planned later in the summer and will include invitations to 
all funding partners and officials.  

• We continue to explore possible funding sources for this project.  
 

Canada Day Celebrations 
 

• A poster for Canada Day events is attached to this report.  
• Fireworks are booked and will be promoted for the evening of June 30th  
• Fox Lake Park Managers will be hosting the annual Canada Day Bike Parade on 

June 30 at 6:30 and we will ensure that they have prizes available for the top 
three bikes.  

• Canada Day celebrations will look a bit different from previous celebrations, but 
we have many returning events with a few new events for folks to enjoy.   

o Flag Raising ceremony will take place north of the pool at 12:30 p.m.  
o Hanna Golf Club will be hosting the Canada Day Golf Tournament 
o The Museum will be open for visits and tours  
o Chris LeBlanc will be on stage at the Community Centre from 1 to 4 p.m. 

to provide music to guests at Hector King Hunter Park. 
o The Pool will be open from 1:00 – 9:00 pm with Family Fun games 

between 4:00 – 7:00 pm 
o Our Spray Park should provide some great Canada Day excitement.    

 
FCSS Update 
 

• Buddy Up – Men’s suicide prevention promotion. FCSS has registered as a 
champion in support of the Buddy Up Program, a suicide prevention campaign.   
In Canada, men have a suicide rate three times higher than women.  Why?  We 
have socialized men to be strong, stoic and self-reliant; showing emotion is a 
sign of weakness, as is asking for help. Further, men are underserved by our 
traditional health and social service sectors.  Men are dying in alarming numbers, 
all around us, alone. So, a group out of Calgary in 2019 started the conversation 
and how to keep it going.  And how hard that really is.   From this, the Buddy Up 
program was developed with some really fun and simple messages featured on 
air fresheners and stickers.  Hanna FCSS has been promoting the air fresheners 
and recently connected with our local RCMP detachment to help us get the word 
(and air fresheners) out into the community.    

 
• Interagency meetings continue virtually with zoom meetings.  These meetings 

allow the exchange of information and communication between social services 
providers within the community.    



 
• Dr. Jody Carrington presentation will be held on December 7th, 2021.   Ticket 

holders were advised of the date change.  
 

• This week marks Seniors’ Week - June 7 to 13, 2021   It is unfortunate that 
once again this year we are unable to celebrate the way we would like to this 
June.  However, the Mayor’s Garden Party, usually held during seniors’ week, 
will be held in September 2021 when we will hopefully have relaxed covid 
regulations.  
 

Emergency Social Services (ESS)  
 

• Regional meetings continue via zoom.  Provincial Emergency Social Services 
(PESS) meetings are also being held with offers of support to develop our plans 
and work cooperatively.    

• Revision of the Hanna ESS plan has been started but is put on hold due to 
current workload.   

 
Grants and support provided  

 
• Green and Inclusive Community Buildings – is a federal grant available to 

assist with the Community Centre renovation.  Currently working with MPE on 
this application for consideration.  
 

• MARD (Medically At-Risk Driver Centre) – We have received $15,000 to be 
used towards transportation assistance in our community.   

 
• Canada Healthy Communities Initiative – Contact has been made with the 

Community Foundation of South Eastern Alberta, who will administer the 
program.    A representative has offered to consult with me regarding submission 
for the June deadline. A review by the Healthy Communities Network will be 
completed at their next meeting on June 15.   
 

Staffing & Employment  
  

• Our department continues to adjust with staff shortages.  It has been noted that 
department staff have been very good at accepting additional responsibilities and 
duties.  This is evident in all areas of the department – including full time and 
even casual or part time staff.  Of course, no department operates in isolation 
and we certainly appreciate the cooperation and support from the entire team.  

 
Meetings Attended/Training  
 
 May 12 – Larry Golby – Ball Diamond Review 
 May 18 – Public Health Inspector – facility inspections/site tours 

May 19 – East Central FCSS meeting  
 May 20 – Interagency meeting 

May 26 – Council info session 
May 26 – Hanna Wellness Network 
May 27 – Mark Fecho – discussion on outdoor stage 
June 2 – Hanna Food Bank 



 
  Various meetings with facility users & organizations in community  

(Zoom, phone, in person)  
 Regular Crew and Staff tool box meetings (in person and online) 

Director’s Meeting – regular Monday mornings or as scheduled  
 
Dates for Council Consideration: 
 
 June 15th – World Elder Abuse Awareness Day  

July 1st – Canada Day celebrations 
 
 

SUMMER PROGRAMS AND EVENTS – Please take note and plan to attend! 
 
This summer we have a team effort happening to bring a variety of programs and events.  
Taking the lead on this initiative is Darcee Hall.  Our Epic Adventures team will operate the Epic 
Adventures program on Mondays, Wednesday and Friday mornings weekly and then take the 
lead on our community events for the rest of the week.    An Epic Adventures brochure is 
attached to this report.  
 

Community Events 
Our community events this summer are directed at getting people outside, connected and 
improving the wellbeing of the community. 

Yoga in the Park: Bluebell rivers will be hosting three different yoga sessions to reach a variety 
of demographics within the community.  

• Chair Yoga for Seniors: June 8th, 15th,22nd,29th  
• Rise and Shine Pool Side: July 20th, 27th, august 3rd  
• Parent & Tot: August 10th,17th,24th  

 
Zumba in the Park (HKH): Robin Rehill will be joining us to provide 3 4-week Zumba sessions 
every Wednesday evening. 

• June 9th,16th,23rd,30th  
• July 7th,14th,21st,28th  
• August 4th,11th,18th,25th  

 
One breathe Yoga (HKH): Carla from One Breathe Yoga will also be doing yoga in the park. 
She will be offering 2 4-week sessions on Monday evenings. 

• June 28th, July 5th,12th,18th  
• August 9th,16th,23rd,30th  

 
DancePL3Y (HKH): Nadine Hein is going to be putting on DancePL3Y in the Park. It is another 
form of dance fitness and helps improve physical literacy by learning new movements.  

• June: 24th  
• July: 29th  
• August: 26th  

 
 



Wellness with REACH (HKH): Andrea Olsen & Jennifer Palmer will be partnering with us to 
provide mental wellness activities in the park.  

• July: 15th Journal making.  
• August 12th Zen Gardens  

 
AstroDome: After the EPIC kids explore the inflatable AstroDome, we will be opening it up for a 
couple different age groups so other community members can register and enjoy the 
planetarium. With high-definition technology, it will be an out of this world experience.  

• July 21st  
 

Alien-In-Line: After the EPIC kids are done learning to roller blade this will also be open to 
registration for community members to partake in. They are Canadas leading skate’s school and 
create a fun atmosphere for all.  

• August 16th  
 

Up close and Paleo: The Tyrell Museum offers presentations online- we can have 35 kids 
participate and depending on Covid regulations all kids can come to the community center and 
watch or will be given the Zoom Link to join on their own.  

• August 19th  

 

 
FREE MUSIC IN THE PARK 

 
Sundays from 4 to 5:30 p.m. 

Hector King Hunter Park – outside stage area 
 

Every Sunday afternoon 4pm-5:30pm, starting June 27th there will be musicians playing 
Music on the outdoor stage at the community center. Come relax, unwind, and enjoy 

some great musical talent. Here are our first 5 musicians! 

• June 27th: Lisa Dodd Watts 
• July 4th: Scotch & Starlight (Lisa &Ryan duo) 

• July 11th: Trevor Christensen 
• July 18th: Garrett Buchfink 

• July 25th: YYC String Machine 

 



hanna.ca302 2nd Ave West  |  P (403) 854-4433  |  E admin@hanna.ca

Wednesday, June 30th

6:30 pm Kids Bike Parade Fox Lake Park 

FOX LAKE PARK EVENTS

7:00 pm Ice Cream (free for kids) (starts at Beach Park)

11:15 pm       FIREWORKS Fox Lake Park

Thursday, July 1st
      Time                 Event                           Location       

8:30 am Canada Day Golf Tournament Hanna Golf Course
Registration & Fees in advance
Contact Hanna Golf Club

403-854-3722

10:00 am - 5:00 pm Hanna MuseumMuseum
Visiting Hours & Tours Available 403-854-4244

12:30 pm Flag Raising Ceremony RCMP Park
N. of Pool Entrance

11:00 am - 8:00 pm

Family Fun at the Park
Spray Park is Open Spray Park / RCMP Park

CANADA DAY

1:00 pm - 4:00 pm Chris LeBlanc Band Community Centre

Fun Patrol - prizes and games throughout the Park during the day!

1:00 pm - 5 :00 pm Free Ice Cream Dixie Cups

1:00 pm - 9 :00 pm Free Public Swimming Swimming Pool

Pool & HKH Park

4:00 pm - 7:00  pm Family Fun at the Pool - prizes & games Swimming Pool



 

Centennial Place 
501B 3rd Street  West 
403-854-4700 
admin@hanna.ca 
hanna.ca 

2021  

HIGH FIVE®  
 

HIGH FIVE® is Canada’s quality standard for    
children’s recreation and sport.  

 
As a registered HIGH FIVE® organization, we  
believe in the power of making a difference in 

children’s lives through giving them the          
‘best way to play’.  

 
HIGH  FIVE® helps to ensure your child is in 
good hands and will enjoy a positive experi-

ence in our programs. 
 

We are always open to your  feedback about 
our programs.  

A Word About Our Staff... 

The Town of Hanna is proud to be a      
certified HIGH FIVE® community. Our 
trained, enthusiastic and engaging staff  
interact with your children in a fun summer 
camp environment. We are focused on 
providing caring leaders that will support 
and encourage your child during their     
adventures with us.   

To ensure quality experience for staff and 
children, the Town of Hanna trains all  
leaders working with children in HIGH 
FIVE® ‘Principles of Healthy Child         
Development’ (PHCD) and Standard First 
Aid. Other opportunities for professional 
development are also encouraged when 
available.   

Program Manager                      

Darcee grew up and went to school right 
down the road in Delia. Her work toward 
her Bachelor of Psychology Degree at the 
University of Windsor Ontario will assist 
her when dealing with all sorts of ages and 
personalities. Darcee loves to stay active 
and take on new adventures, so she has 
lots of exciting activities planned to have 
an ‘Epic’ summer! 

 

Parents Please... 
Ensure children are aware of the         
protocols in accordance with                
recommendations by Alberta’s Chief 
Medical Officer that will be in place    
PRIOR to them arriving to the program. 
A full listing of the protocol and           
guidelines will be posted.          

• Guardians are requested to check 
child’s temperature prior to drop off  

• Screening upon entry 
• Increased hand hygiene  
• Record of attendance kept on file 
• Cohort information will be requested 
• Social distancing will be in place. In 

place of ‘high fives’ and hugs, there 
will be air fives, happy dances, air 
hugs and more!  



Traditional Children's  
Program at Centennial Place 

 
Epic Adventures will be held on     

Monday, Wednesday, and Friday  
providing children with outdoor        

activities, crafts, sport games, and 
community involvement.  

Each week, special guests will be    
joining us, such as Minds in Motion 
from the University of Calgary, who 
will be providing a science activity    

virtually on Fridays.  

 

July 5,7,9  S’more Adventures 
July 12,14,16  Tourist Time 

July 19,21,23  Community Heroes 
July 26,28,30 National Geographic 

 
August 4,6  Dive into Fun 

August 9,11,13  Olympians 
August 16,18,20  Blast to the Past 
August 23,25,27 Celebrations &   

Farewell 
 

 

Epic Adventures has adapted the        
traditional programming, in         

response to COVID-19, to offer a 
variety of programs to children 

and their families, in a safe         
environment. Traditional           

children’s programming will     
continue to be offered, however 

space and frequency will be      
limited. Additionally, community 

events and programs will be       
offered as well!   

 Community Events and Programs 

Thursdays will be ‘Wellness Thursday’ 
where there will be different activities each 
week, featuring special guests for exercise, 
crafts, and more!  Sundays there will be 
‘Music in the Park’ at Hector King-Hunter 
Park.  Plans are in place to have Zumba, 
Yoga, and more on Tuesdays and 
Wednesdays!  Pre-registration and fees 
required.  

 

 

 

How to Register 
Complete a registration form and    
return to Town Office with payment. 
Etransfer payments can be made to 
payments@hanna.ca, leave name and 
contact information in the comments. 
For further information call Darcee at 
403-854-4433. 
 
Additional forms and brochures are         
available at hanna.ca/youth. 

 

Fees 
Per child: $5/ day  
 

What to Bring? 
Adventurers are asked to bring a        
nut-free snack, hat, sunscreen, water 
bottle, and weather appropriate clothing. 

 
Times 
Program days begin at 9:00 am and 
end at 12  pm; drop off from 8:30 am to 
9:00 am and pick up 12:00 pm to 12:30 
pm.  Please  follow signage and use 
Northwest door of Centennial Place. 

scheduled program 
space is limited so sign 

up early to ensure 
your spot! 

 

 

http://www.hanna.ca/youth


DIRECTOR OF PROTECTIVE SERVICES 
COUNCIL REPORT June 8, 2021 

 

W:\90 Staff Folders\Adrian\Council Meetings\2021\06 Council Brief June,  2021.doc 
 

 
BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT: 
 
Complaints dealt with:  May 2020 / June 2021 
 
Animal Control Garbage        Unsightly       Parking         Grass/Weeds        Other  
 1            0                  2     5       3           0 
 
• CN Rail in cooperation with the Town of Hanna and a local private contractor have made an 

agreement for the cleanup of debris on a large portion of the CN right-of-way and adjoining 
CN property between the right-of-way and Railway Avenue. Town Administration is pleased 
with the progress and the welcome cooperation of CN to make this large open green area 
safe and manageable for regular maintenance during the summer months. 
 

• Continue to mark tires and issue warnings to RV owners who are in violation of the “48 On – 
48 Off” RV parking regulations. 
 

• Based on complaint and patrol observation, identified, and contacted property owners 
whose front yard lawns have overgrown the public sidewalks to a large degree making it 
difficult for pedestrian use in both winter and summer months. Anyone having trouble in 
negotiating use of the public sidewalks due to this issue is encouraged to contact Bylaw and 
request remediation. 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT: May 2021 / June 2021 
 
Permit #       Type of Development            Address $ Value 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted: Adrian Mohl, Protective Services 
 

D18-21 
Home Occupation: 
Electrical Contractor 515 – 6 Avenue West $0.00 

D19-21 Handicap entrance ramp 510 – 1 Avenue West $1,500.00 

D20-21 
Home Occupation: 
On-line Sales 106 – 7 Avenue West $0.00 

D21-21 

Home Occupation: 
Specialty Candy Bouquet 
Sales 111 – 3 Avenue East $0.00 



COUNCIL REPORT 
 
DATE: June 8, 2021 
 
PRESENTED BY: Brent Olesen, Director of Public Works 
 
 
• Since the May 11, 2021 Council meeting, the public works department has been busy with 

the following items: 
     

 Water & Sewer  
• We are hauling sewer from the Special Areas maintenance yard and the airport 

once a month.  We are now hauling from Fox Lake and the Triplex holding 
tanks every Friday and will do so until they close at the end of season.  

• We finished sewer flushing on May 13th.   Letters were sent to residents in one 
area of town to advise that cat litter is being flushed into the sewer, and 
although it may say flushable, it settles in the sewer mains and creates issues.   

• As part of the sewer flushing program, staff keep records of manholes that need 
maintenance.   This year there are 12 manholes that need some attention 
(restoration of bases, replacement of ladder rungs or repair of walls).  Top Shot 
Concrete has been contacted regarding the required work.   

• Water was turned on for the RV dumping station at the UFA site on May 21st. 
• We repaired a service on 1st Street West. 
• Repaired the curbstop at Winkler Park for the irrigation system.  
• First calls are completed for the new CoreAg office on South Municipal Road, 

so we will install the waterline to the property this month. 
• Using the hydrovac truck, we located the water & sewer lines in the right of way 

in preparation for installation of services to property south of Highway 9. 
• Turned off valves to assist the hospital staff to install backflow preventors in the 

health care complex.     
 

 Road Maintenance 
• We have been fixing potholes and topping up gravel in the spots that were dug 

up for water repairs through the winter. 
• Street sweeping has been completed for the spring. 
• Line painting for crosswalks, parking lines and no-parking areas has begun.  
• Alleys are being graded as we have time.  
• The screener has been ordered.  Once it arrives, we will screen millings for use 

on the alleys and roads.  
• We did put millings on the road to the triplex ball diamonds last week.   It 

definitely reduces the dust on the road.   
 

 Cemetery   
• We had interments for two cremations and one casket this month. 
• Will be doing some work on leveling and seeding grass on graves that were 

opened in late fall or winter.   
 



 Meetings 
• I am attending the Monday morning Director’s meetings.    

 
• Airport   

• The windsock has been repaired and the wiring has been done to replace the 
existing light with an LED fixture.  

• There is water damage along the west wall of the building.   We are getting 
quotes for that work to be done.     

• The final 5 runway lights that need repair are being worked on as we have time. 
 

 Staff   
• I am pleased to confirm that Logan Gutsche has accepted the full-time 

permanent position with the public works department.  Logan is a journeyman 
mechanic and will be an asset to the department.  He will start in mid June.  

• Staff members are booking their summer holidays.  
• Braeden took vacation time the last week of May so he and Katelyn could move 

and get settled in their new house.  He seems excited. 
 

 General  
• Spring Cleanup was completed the week of the 17th - 21st.  It seemed to go 

well, however some people are still not using clear or compostable bags. 
• Took the front-end loader out to Fox Lake on June 1st and cleaned out the boat 

launch area a second time.   
• Picked up, assembled and installed a desk unit that was purchased from Jeff 

Faupel for Winona’s office.  The unit was listed for sale online and was in great 
condition.  The desk and bookcases from Winona’s office were moved to the 
map room.   

• Wes has been working on the last two tandem trucks that need to be certified 
this year. 

• Once the new banners arrive from the printers, they will be put up in the 
downtown area.  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

  
Date: June 8, 2021         Agenda Item No: 09.01 
 

Item Title 
 

Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision & Development Appeal Board – Appointments  
 

Recommended Motion 
 

That Council appoint Mr. Gerald Campion and Mr. Kim Neill to the Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision 
& Development Appeal Board for three-year terms ending May 31, 2024.  
 

Background 
 

Palliser Regional Municipal Services (PRMS) and its members saw the need to establish an 
Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board.   PRMS has established an Intermunicipal 
Subdivision and Development Appeal Board and serves as the coordinator for the program including 
the arrangement of necessary training, assignments of Board Members and Clerks and any 
administration required.  Costs for the municipalities are detailed in the Schedule of Fees and 
municipalities are responsible for all costs of an appeal within their jurisdiction. 
 
Council at their May 10, 2020, meeting passed a resolution that the Town of Hanna enter into the 
Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Agreement which allows the Town 
of Hanna to participate in the Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board. 
Secondly, at that meeting Council passed all three readings of Bylaw 1007-2020, the Palliser 
Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Bylaw.  
 
Both Mr. Campion and Mr. Neill have taken the designated SDAB training and PRMS has asked 
Administration to have both appointed to the Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision & Development Appeal 
Board.  Mr. Campion will be appointed as a Member and Mr. Neill as a Clerk.   
 

Communications 
 

N/A   
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.01 subdivision & development appeal board -appointment.docx 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 

1. Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Agreement 
 

Attachments 
 
 N/A 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 































 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021         Agenda Item No: 09.02 
 

Item Title 
 

Council Code of Conduct - Complaint 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council authorizes Mayor Warwick to respond to the complainant Mr. Cory Ashley to confirm that 
Council has reviewed his letter dated May 18, 2021 and the corresponding material provided in support 
of the complaint that Councilor Kyle Olsen has violated Town of Hanna Council Code of Conduct Bylaw 
994-2018 and following review of the evidence Council does not find reasonable and probable grounds 
for the allegation that Councillor Olsen has contravened this Bylaw and considers the matter closed. 
 

Background 
 
On April 13, 2021, Council reviewed an email from Ms. Terry Johnston regarding conduct unbecoming 
a councillor. Ms. Johnston expressed concern regarding Councillor Olsen participating in an online 
bullying situation, however she did not provide any evidence of bullying or that Councillor Olsen acted 
in bad faith other than her subjective opinion stated in her email.  Administration responded to Ms. 
Johnston, advising that all members of Council reviewed the Code of Conduct Bylaw as she suggested 
in her email and at that point, the matter was considered closed.   
 
Mr. Cory Ashley spoke to Council at the May 11, 2021, Regular Council Meeting voicing his concerns 
about people being bullied in Hanna, both online and in person.   Mr. Ashley stated that he feels he has 
been bullied by several people, including Councillor Olsen which is disrespectful and against the 
Council Code of Conduct Bylaw.   Mr. Ashley agreed that Ms. Johnston did not provide sufficient 
evidence that Councilor Olsen violated the Council Code of Conduct bylaw and stated he would be 
supplying satisfactory evidence of Councillor Olsen violating this Bylaw.  Mr. Ashley submitted a letter 
to Administration on May 18, 2021, requesting that Council discipline Councillor Olsen and provided a 
copy of the Code of Conduct bylaw indicating the applicable sections, as well as 74 pages of bullying 
comments from various Facebook pages.   

The purpose of Town of Hanna Council Code of Conduct Bylaw 994 – 2018 is to establish standards for 
the ethical conduct of Members relating to their roles and obligations as representatives of the Municipality.   
The bylaw includes a procedure for the investigation and enforcement of those standards.  
 
In part the Bylaw states that when representing the municipality Members shall: 

• act honestly and, in good faith, serve the welfare and interests of the Municipality as a whole; 
• perform their functions and duties in a conscientious and diligent manner with integrity, accountability 

and transparency; 
• conduct themselves in a professional manner with dignity and make every effort to participate 

diligently in the meetings of Council, committees of Council and other bodies to which they are 
appointed by Council; and 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.02 council code of conduct - complaint.docx 

• arrange their private affairs and conduct themselves in a manner that promotes public confidence 
and will bear close public scrutiny. 

In addition, the Bylaw states the following regarding interactions with Council Members, Staff, the Public 
and Others 

• Members shall act in a manner that demonstrates fairness, respect for individual differences and 
opinions, and an intention to work together for the common good and in furtherance of the public 
interest. 

• Members shall treat one another, employees of the Municipality and members of the public with 
courtesy, dignity, and respect and without abuse, bullying or intimidation. 

• No Member shall use indecent, abusive, or insulting words or expressions toward another Member, 
any employee of the Municipality or any member of the public. 

• No Member shall speak in a manner that is discriminatory to any individual based on the person’s race, 
religious beliefs, colour, gender, physical disability, mental disability, age, ancestry, place of origin, 
marital status, source of income, family status or sexual orientation. 

• Members shall respect the fact that employees in Administration work for the Municipality as a 
corporate body and are charged with making recommendations that reflect their professional 
expertise and a corporate perspective and that employees are required to do so without undue 
influence from any Member or group of Members. 

• Members must not: 
o involve themselves in matters of Administration, which fall within the jurisdiction of the CAO; 
o use, or attempt to use, their authority or influence for the purpose of intimidating, threatening, 

coercing, commanding, or influencing any employee of the Municipality with the intent of 
interfering in the employee’s duties; or 

o maliciously or falsely injure the professional or ethical reputation, or the prospects or practice of 
employees of the Municipality 

 
Below please find the Complaint Process found in the Council Conduct Bylaw 994 – 2018. 
 
17. Informal Complaint Process  

17.1. Any Member who has identified or witnessed conduct by a Member that the Member reasonably 
believes, in good faith, is in contravention of this Bylaw may address the prohibited conduct by: 

(a) advising the Member that the conduct violates this Bylaw and encouraging the Member to 
stop, 

(b) requesting the Mayor to assist in informal discussion of the alleged complaint with the 
Member in an attempt to resolve the issue. In the event that the Mayor is the subject of, or is 
implicated in a complaint, the person may request the assistance of the Deputy Mayor. 

17.2. Individuals are encouraged to pursue this informal complaint procedure as the first means of 
remedying conduct that they believe violates this Bylaw. However, an individual is not required 
to complete this informal complaint procedure prior to pursuing the formal complaint procedure 
outlined below. 

 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.02 council code of conduct - complaint.docx 

18. Formal Complaint Process  

18.1. Any Member who has identified or witnessed conduct by a Member that the Member reasonably 
believes, in good faith, is in contravention of this Bylaw may file a formal complaint in accordance 
with the following procedure: 

(a) All complaints shall be made in writing and shall be dated and signed by an identifiable 
individual; 

(b) All complaints shall be addressed to the Investigator; 

(c) The complaint must set out reasonable and probable grounds for the allegation that the 
Member has contravened this Bylaw, including a detailed description of the facts, as they are 
known, giving rise to the allegation; 

(d) If the facts, as reported, include the name of one or more Members who are alleged to be 
responsible for the breach of this Bylaw, the Member or Members concerned shall receive a 
copy of the complaint submitted to the Investigator; 

(e) Upon receipt of a complaint under this Bylaw, the Investigator shall review the complaint and 
decide whether to proceed to investigate the complaint or not. If the Investigator is of the 
opinion that a complaint is frivolous or vexatious or is not made in good faith, or that there 
are no grounds or insufficient grounds for conducting an investigation, the Investigator may 
choose not to investigate or, if already commenced, may terminate any investigation, or may 
dispose of the complaint in a summary manner. In that event, the complainant and Council, 
if Council is not the Investigator, shall be notified of the Investigator’s decision; 

(f) If the Investigator decides to investigate the complaint, the Investigator shall take such steps 
as it may consider appropriate, which may include seeking legal advice. All proceedings of 
the Investigator regarding the investigation shall be confidential; 

(g) If the Investigator is not Council, the Investigator shall, upon conclusion of the investigation, 
provide the Council and the Member who is the subject of the complaint, the results of the 
Investigator’s investigation; 

(h) A Member who is the subject of an investigation shall be afforded procedural fairness, 
including an opportunity to respond to the allegations before Council deliberates and makes 
any decision or any sanction is imposed; 

(i) A Member who is the subject of an investigation is entitled to be represented by legal 
counsel, at the Member’s sole expense. 

 
19. Compliance and Enforcement  

19.1. Members shall uphold the letter and the spirit and intent of this Bylaw. 

19.2. Members are expected to co-operate in every way possible in securing compliance with the 
application and enforcement of this Bylaw. 

19.3. No Member shall: 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.02 council code of conduct - complaint.docx 

(a) undertake any act of reprisal or threaten reprisal against a complainant or any other person 
for providing relevant information to Council or to any other person; 

(b) obstruct Council, or any other person, in carrying out the objectives or requirements of this 
Bylaw. 

19.4. Sanctions that may be imposed on a Member, by Council, upon a finding that the Member has 
breached this Bylaw may include: 

(a) a letter of reprimand addressed to the Member; 

(b) requesting the Member to issue a letter of apology; 

(c) publication of a letter of reprimand or request for apology and the Member’s response; 

(d) suspension or removal of the appointment of a Member as the chief elected official under 
section 150(2) of the Act; 

(e) suspension or removal of the appointment of a Member as the deputy chief elected official or 
acting chief elected official under section 152 of the Act; 

(f) suspension or removal of the chief elected official’s presiding duties under section 154 of the 
Act; 

(g) suspension or removal from some or all Council committees and bodies to which council has 
the right to appoint members; 

 
(h) reduction or suspension of remuneration as defined in section 275.1 of the Act corresponding 

to a reduction in duties, excluding allowances for attendance at council meetings; 

(i) any other sanction Council deems reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances provided 
that the sanction does not prevent a Member from fulfilling the legislated duties of a councillor 
and the sanction is not contrary to the Act. 

Administration has reviewed the letter and the evidence supplied by Mr. Ashley and is providing the 
following comments: 

1. The evidence supplied by Mr. Ashley is difficult to follow in that there are snapshots from various 
Facebook pages that are not traceable. 

2. There are many duplicate pages or comments. 
3. Many of the pages do not refer to comments made to or by Councillor Olsen or Kyle Olsen. 
4. The Anti-Bullying Bylaw is a resource for the RCMP to lay a charge under the Provincial Offences 

Procedure Act, if they feel the action is warranted.  

It is Administrations position that from the evidence supplied by Mr. Ashley there has been no violation of 
the Council Code of Conduct Bylaw and Administration would recommend that Council respond to Mr. 
Ashley stating that upon review of the evidence supplied by him it is Council’s position that there has been 
no violation of the Code of Conduct Bylaw and Council considers the matter closed. 

 
 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.02 council code of conduct - complaint.docx 

Communications 
 

N/A 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
N/A 

 
Attachments 

 
1. Letter and material from Cory Ashley dated May 18, 2021 
2. Town of Hanna Bylaw 994-2018 – Council Code of Conduct Bylaw 
3. Town of Hanna Bylaw 964-2012 – Anti-Bullying Bylaw  
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

  

Operating: N/A Capital Cost:  
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  































































































































































































 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 09.03 
 

Item Title 
 

Coal Development – Eastern Slopes 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council authorizes the Mayor to provide an Endorsement of Support on behalf of the Town of 
Hanna to advise that the Town supports the proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy as prepared by 
the Town of High River. 
 

Background 
 
As Council is aware the Province of Alberta was considering allowing coal leases/permits in certain 
areas of the eastern slopes of the Rockies.  There has been considerable negative feedback from 
Alberta residents and municipalities, specifically those closer to the Rockies and Council has received 
several letters from these municipalities addressed to the Premier or Minister of Environment over the 
last few months. Red Deer River Municipal Users Group have met with Alberta Environment 
representatives and indicated the importance of the eastern slopes on water resources like the Red 
Deer River which receives its water from the Eastern Slopes and supplies drinking water to numerous 
municipal water systems. 
 

The province has since backed off considerably and indicated there would be no further coal 
permits/leases granted until a thorough consultation process has been completed. In March 2021, the 
Government of Alberta (GOA) announced the establishment of a Coal Policy Committee, an 
independent group to develop and lead a widespread and comprehensive public engagement to inform 
Alberta’s long-term approach to coal development.  The committee is expected to finish its final report, 
which will provide advice and recommendations to the Minister of Energy, by November 15, 2021. 
 
The committee is responsible for ensuring the views of all Albertans are represented.  To aid in this, 
the committee has launched its engagement webpage and is calling for technical submissions. The 
topics of the technical submissions can be: 
 

• Environmental impacts 
• Economic impacts 
• Water management 
• Regulation 
• Mining technology 
• Other (please specify) 

 
The Town of High River has been very vocal about restricting Coal leases/permits along the eastern 
slopes and has recently made a request to all municipalities to endorse their proposed Alberta Coal 
Restriction Policy that they will be forwarding to the province for consideration. 
 

https://your.alberta.ca/coal-policy-committee?tool=news_feed#tool_tab
https://your.alberta.ca/coal-policy-committee?tool=survey_tool&tool_id=technical-submissions#tool_tab


 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.03 coal development - eastern slopes.docx 

After discussion on this topic at the May 26, 2021, Council Information Meeting it was decided that the 
Town of High River request for endorsement of their proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy be 
placed on the June 8, 2021, Council Meeting Agenda for decision. 
 
The Proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy has three key principles: 
 

1. No further coal exploration or development will be permitted on the Eastern Slopes of 
Alberta. There will no longer be categories within this area and, instead, there would only be 
one area defined today as the Eastern Slopes. 

2. Existing coal mining operations in the Hinton/Grande Cache areas will be permitted to retire 
gracefully. 

3. Reclamation of lands disturbed by coal exploration activities with coal exploration permits 
          issued prior to February 8, 2021, must be reclaimed no later than December 31, 2025. 
 

The rationale for the three principles of the Alberta Coal Restriction Policy are as follows: 
 

1. The inherent value of the Eastern Slopes only exists with the landscape remaining intact. 
2. The headwaters and landscapes of the Eastern Slopes are critical to the future of our 

province. Our communities, agriculture production, food production, tourism, and recreation 
all rely on these landscapes existing and their watersheds producing clean water. Water is a 
limited resource that we all require to exist. The Town is strongly opposed to any activity that 
increases the likelihood of water contamination. Once a waterway has been contaminated by 
coal mining, this action cannot be reversed. Our future generations depend on us protecting 
this resource. 

3. The negative impacts on the environment, human health, animal health and existing 
economies far outweigh the new jobs, taxes, royalties or economics that may be generated 
as a result of coal development in this area. 

 
The Town of High River will collect all feedback received and report back to the Coal Policy 
Committee in July 2021. 
 

Attachments 
 
1. Town of High River – Proposed Alberta Coal Policy. 

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 
 
May 19, 2021 
 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUIRED  
 
VIA E-MAIL 
 
 
Town of Hanna 
Mr. Chris Warwick 
PO Box 430  
Hanna, AB  T0J 1P0 
Email: admin@hanna.ca 
 
Attention: Mayor Chris Warwick & Members of Council 
 
 
RE: Proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy         
 
Dear Your Worship & Members of Council: 
 
Your input on the future of the Eastern Slopes of the Rockies is important to the long-term health of 
our water resources and their ability to provide clean drinking water to all communities in the 
Province.  The Town of High River remains concerned about the negative impacts coal mining will 
have on our communities, landscapes, water resources, and future generations. We are requesting 
your support for our version of a new policy that reflects our desire to protect the Eastern Slopes and 
our water resources in perpetuity. 
 
The Town of High River has met with the Coal Policy Committee and agreed to prepare a framework 
that would see coal exploration and development banned along the Eastern Slopes.  At our May 10, 
2021 Regular Meeting, Council unanimously supported the wording outlined below and we are 
requesting all Alberta Municipalities join us in supporting the proposed policy. 
 
Specifically, the Town’s proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy would be effective November 15, 
2021 and has three key principles: 
 

1. No further coal exploration or development will be permitted on the Eastern Slopes of 
Alberta.  There will no longer be categories within this area and, instead, there would only be 
one area defined today as the Eastern Slopes. 

 
2. Existing coal mining operations in the Hinton/Grande Cache areas will be permitted to retire 

gracefully. 
 

3. Reclamation of lands disturbed by coal exploration activities with coal exploration permits 
issued prior to February 8, 2021 must be reclaimed no later than December 31, 2025. 

 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 



 
Our rationale for the three principles of the Alberta Coal Restriction Policy are as follows: 
 

1. The inherent value of the Eastern Slopes only exists with the landscape remaining intact. 
 

2. The headwaters and landscapes of the Eastern Slopes are critical to the future of our 
province.  Our communities, agriculture production, food production, tourism, and recreation 
all rely on these landscapes existing and their watersheds producing clean water.  Water is a 
limited resource that we all require to exist.  The Town is strongly opposed to any activity that 
increases the likelihood of water contamination. Once a waterway has been contaminated by 
coal mining, this action cannot be reversed.  Our future generations depend on us protecting 
this resource. 
 

3. The negative impacts on the environment, human health, animal health and existing 
economies far outweigh the new jobs, taxes, royalties or economics that may be generated 
as a result of coal development in this area. 

 
The Town will collect all feedback received and report back to the Coal Policy Committee in July 
2021. 
 
If you are in support of the proposed policy wording, please send a signed letter to myself or 
acknowledge your support utilizing the endorsement below.  Please send all letters and feedback to 
csnodgrass@highriver.ca, with a copy to legislativeservices@highriver.ca no later than July 15, 2021. 
 
I will then present this policy to the Coal Policy Committee along with the feedback received.  If you 
are interested in participating in the presentation of this policy to the Coal Policy Committee, please 
contact me at the above noted email address. 
 
Thank you for considering supporting this important initiative.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 

Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Craig Snodgrass 
Mayor 
Cell: 403.652.9489 
 
CS/cp/kr 
 
 

Endorsement of Support 
 
On behalf of the City/Town/Village of  
 
________________________________________,  
 
I ,_______________________________________  
 
,can advise that the City/Town/Village of  
 
________________________________________  
 
supports the proposed Alberta Coal Restriction 
Policy as prepared above. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 

Signature   
 

 

mailto:csnodgrass@highriver.ca
mailto:legislativeservices@highriver.ca


 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 09.04 
 

Item Title 
 

COVID-19 Operating Plan Update 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council accepts the Town of Hanna COVID-19 Operating Plan Update dated June 8, 2021, for 
information.  
 

Background 
 
On May 26, 2021, the Province announced their Covid 19 Re-opening Plan.  
 
Alberta's Open for Summer Plan includes three stages based on vaccination thresholds and 
hospitalizations: 

• Stage 1: Two weeks after 50 per cent of Albertans age 12-plus have received at least one 
dose of vaccine and COVID-19 hospitalizations are below 800 and declining. 

• Stage 2: Two weeks after 60 per cent of Albertans age 12-plus have received at least one 
dose of vaccine and COVID-19 hospitalizations are below 500 and declining. 

• Stage 3: Two weeks after 70 per cent of Albertans age 12-plus have received at least one 
dose of vaccine. 

Stage 1 of the Plan was entered into on June 1, 2021. Since the Town of Hanna (Special Areas No. 2) 
was in a region of the province that was below the threshold of 30 active cases Stage 1 does not provide 
the Town Operations with any additional opportunities. 
 
Stage 2 removes more restrictions and is anticipated to begin June 10th with Stage 3 removing almost 
all restrictions and anticipated to begin around the end of June.    

  
The new restrictions impact the Town of Hanna in the following manner: 
 
Town Facilities Operations 

  
Arena 
 
When the Province enters Stage 2 the arena can be opened to the public up to 30% of fire code 
occupancy.  Administration is prepared to take any bookings within those parameters, but summer is 
generally a quiet season for this facility.  
 
Stage 3 all restrictions are lifted. 
 
 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.04 covid-19 operating plan update.docx 

• The Hanna Indoor Pro Rodeo is scheduled for September 24th – 26th  
• The Hospital Auxiliary Rummage Sale is scheduled for October 2nd 

 
Curling Rink 
 
When the Province enters Stage 2 the curling rink can be opened to the public up to 30% of fire code 
occupancy.  Administration is prepared to take any bookings within those parameters, but summer is 
generally a quiet season for this facility.  
 
Stage 3 all restrictions are lifted. 
 

• The Hanna Farmers Market weekly markets begin June 2nd running every Wednesday until 
September 22nd. 

• The Gun Club show and sale is tentatively booked for July 17th & 18th. 
• The Hospital Auxiliary Rummage Sale is scheduled for October 2nd. 

 
Centennial Place 
 
When the Province enters Stage 2 Centennial Place can be opened to the public up to 30% of fire code 
occupancy.  Summer is generally a quiet season for this facility, but the following will be able to open.  

• Fitness centre will be opened with 3 metre distancing between participants.  Since our fitness 
space is small, the plan is to proceed with taking bookings during operating hours. 

• Walking track will be available during operating hours. 
• EPIC adventures will be based out of the building as of July 5th. 
• Kiddies Korner closed for the season.  
• Hanna Dance season has ended. 

 
It is anticipated that the facility will be opened to the public as of June 14th within the hours of 9:00AM 
– 5:00PM, Monday – Friday and closed weekends. 
 
The facility will be open for bookings for private events such as birthday parties as of June 14th. 

 
In Stage 3 all restrictions are lifted. Once all restrictions are opened (anticipated around the end of 
June/early July) Administration is planning to increase the operating hours to Monday – Friday from 
9:00AM – 8:00PM and remaining closed on weekends until the beginning of September unless there 
is a private booking. 
 
Community Centre 
 
When the Province enters Stage 2 the community centre can be opened to the public up to 30% of fire 
code occupancy.  Administration is prepared to take any bookings within that parameter.  
 
Stage 3 all restrictions are lifted. 
 
 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.04 covid-19 operating plan update.docx 

Fox Lake Park Campground 
 
The campground opened for the season on May 15th and camping at individual sites was allowed under 
the Provincial Plan prior to Stage 1.  Under Stage 2 outdoor gatherings up to 20 people with physical 
distancing is allowed and Stage 3 all restrictions are lifted.  
 
Swimming Pool 
 
The Swimming Pool opened for the season on May 21st.   
 
Spray Park 
 
The spray park water system is being commissioned the week of June 7th and the pour in place surface 
will be installed beginning the week of June 14, 2021. There is some landscaping that is required after 
the surface is poured and it is hoped that if everything goes according to plan and the weather 
cooperates, the park may be able to be opened to the public around June 20th. 
 
Lions Hall 
 
When the Province enters Stage 2 the Lions Hall can be opened to the public up to 30% of fire code 
occupancy.  Administration is prepared to take any bookings within that parameter.  
 
Stage 3 all restrictions are lifted. 
 
Outdoor Facilities 
 
The outdoor rink is being used by the Pickleball Club on a regular basis  with Covid 19 protocols. When 
the Province enters Stage 2 restrictions for indoors and outdoors youth and adult sports can resume 
with no restrictions. 
 
The Tennis court is open and available. When the Province enters Stage 2 restrictions for indoors and 
outdoors youth and adult sports can resume with no restrictions. 
 
Minor Ball and Minor Soccer have been able to practice. When the Province enters Stage 2 restrictions 
for indoors and outdoors youth and adult sports can resume with no restrictions.  Administration has 
not heard if the Adult Slo-pitch league is going to resume or if the annual Slo-pitch tournament is 
planning to be held in late August.  
 
Playgrounds remain open. 
 
Handi-van / Table & Chair / Picnic Tables Calendar  
 
Handi-van bookings are continuing. 
 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.04 covid-19 operating plan update.docx 

Administration has provided picnic tables to two restaurants so they could have a patio open prior to 
the opening of indoor dining.  
 
Programming 

EPIC Adventures is anticipating starting their summer day camps on July 5th. These day camps will be 
modified ½ day programs running Monday – Wednesday – Fridays.  Additional family programming will 
occur on Tuesdays and Thursdays and have several Sunday afternoons with Music in the Park planned. 

Canada Day plans this year will be scaled back as compared to pre-covid days as the timing on entering 
Stage 3 when restrictions are lifted is still tentative. 

Staffing 

Currently the Town has all available full-time staff working.  Casual staff at Centennial Place will be 
brought back as the restrictions lessen and are eliminated.   The Centennial Place full-time position has 
been seconded to the Town Office for cross-training and to temporarily fill the vacant full-time position 
(medical leave) in the Office.    
 
The Public Works Department has filled their vacant full-time position with the hiring of Logan Gutsche 
who will be starting work on June 21st. 
 
The Town has completed the seasonal staff hiring as follows: 

• Public Works – one seasonal position started May 10th. 
• Parks - two seasonal staff started April 6th  

-     three seasonal staff started April 26th 
one seasonal staff started May 17th  
three high school students starting at the end of June/beginning of July.   

• Pool Manager started May 10th and the remaining pool staff have been hired with the opening 
of the pool on May 22nd.   

• EPIC Adventure Program Manager started May 3rd.  Program Leaders (2) will begin June 28th.   
• Town Office summer assistance position began May 3rd. 
 

Communications 
 
Highlights of the reports will be communicated on the Town of Hanna Website and through the Town 
of Hanna Social Media programs. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds: ______________________ Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\09.04 covid-19 operating plan update.docx 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Attachments 
 

1. Province of Alberta 3 Stage Plan for re-opening. 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

    



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 10.00 
 

Item Title 
 

Joint Public Hearing   
 

Background 
 
 
At the May 11, 2021 Council Meeting, Council authorized that a Public Hearing for Bylaw 1016-2021 
be held on June 8, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. by virtual means to allow any person who claims that he/she will 
be affected prejudicially by Bylaw No. 1016-2021, an opportunity to be heard by Council.    A second 
motion was approved, authorizing a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1017-2021 to be held at the same 
time as both Bylaws are affecting the same properties.   The notice of the public hearing was advertised 
and that the required notices were sent to owners of the affected properties as well as adjacent 
landowners.   
 
The agenda and explanation of the Rules of Procedure for the Public Hearing are provided. 
 
 AGENDA 
 

1. Mayor - Open Public Hearing – 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Explanation of The Rules of Procedure - Mayor  
 
3. Explanation of the Purpose of the Public Hearing - Administrator 

a. Bylaw 1016-2021 – Land Use Amendment – Re-designation 
b. Bylaw 1017-2021 – Municipal Development Plan Amendment – Re-designation 
 

4. Palliser Regional Municipal Services  
 
5. Development Officer for the Town of Hanna  
 
6. Applicant 
 
7. Those in Support  
 
8. Those Opposed 
 
9. Letters to be Read into the Record (if any) 
 
10. Applicant - Closing Remarks  
 
11. Mayor – Close Public Hearing 

 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\10.01 agenda public hearing bylaws 1016-2021 & 1017-2021.docx 

 THE RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 

There will be an explanation of the purpose this Public Hearing given by Administration and Palliser 
Regional Municipal Services. 
 
The applicant for the proposed Land Use designation change will be given opportunity to explain their 
reasons for having made the proposal.  Before the hearing concludes the applicant will be given an 
opportunity to make some closing remarks. 
 
Any person present who wishes to address the Public Hearing either in opposition or support may do 
so.  We will ask all of those present who wish to make a presentation to give us your name, who you 
represent and whether or not you support or oppose the proposed Land Use change.  A list will be 
prepared so that we can call you forward to make your presentation.  All presentations made to Council 
will be restricted to 5 minutes.  Your cooperation in affording everyone an opportunity to make their 
views known is sincerely appreciated. 
 
No discussions will be permitted between those making presentations.  Only the Councillors will be 
permitted to ask questions of the presenter for points of clarification. 
 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is for the Council of the Town of Hanna to gather information 
regarding the proposed Land Use designation change and Municipal Development Plan designation 
change to be able to give consideration to all opinions when making a decision as to whether or not the 
proposed amendments should be put in place. 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Attachments 
 

1. Palliser Regional Municipal Services Presentation 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 

    



Town of Hanna Public Hearing
Bylaws 1017-21 & 1016-21 

Proposed amendments to Municipal Development Plan 968-2013 
& 

Land Use Bylaw 967-2012

June 8th, 2021

Presented By: Palliser Regional Municipal Services 



Presentation Outline

➢ Background Information / Purpose

➢ Statutory Documents and Land use Impacts

➢ Circulations and Notifications

➢ Conclusion

Town of Hanna Public Hearing
Bylaws 1017-21 & 1016-21 



Applicant: Town of Hanna

General Purpose:

Bylaw 1017-2021: Proposes to amend the Future Land Use Map within the 
Towns Municipal Development Plan (MDP). The map currently identifies 
the subject location for future Highway Commercial development and is 
being proposed to be updated to Highway Commercial or Industrial 
development for this location. 

Bylaw 1016-21: Proposes to amend the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) by 
redistricting (rezoning) the parcel from Highway Commercial District to 
Industrial District. This change will permit the development of uses as 
outlined in the Industrial District of the Town of Hanna Land Use Bylaw. 

Overall intent of the proposed Bylaws is to accommodate a future 
development proposal for a fertilizer blending facility. 

Background Information



Location: Legal- Plan 7810 701 Block A Lot 2 & Plan 051 1341 Block A Lots 3-6 Inclusive 

Background Information



Why are these proposals being reviewed? 

➢ Developer interest in pursing an industrial operation with the
purpose creating a nutrient rich fertilizer that consists of 70 per 
cent elemental Sulphur and 30 percent compost.

o Compost is created from recycled food organics which would be
trucked to the facility. All composting process occur off site and only 
the finished compost product is brought to this location. 

o All blending of compost and Sulphur would occur onsite and outdoors. 

➢ Currently zoned Highway Commercial District

➢ MDP Future Land use Map indicates future Highway Commercial 
area

➢ To accommodate this proposal the future land use for this area 
will need to be updated in the MDP. This would permit the 
subsequent rezoning of the land to an industrial district 

Background Information



Municipal Development Plan Review 



Future Land Use Policies:

“2.4.  Proposed Land Use Bylaw amendments shall conform to the land uses Identified in 
Figure 1 and all provisions of the Municipal Development Plan.”

“2.10. The Town shall focus on providing a quality land use mix including appropriate 
residential, commercial, industrial and community service land uses for the greatest 
benefit to residents and businesses.”

Commercial Policies:

“4.8. The Town shall maintain and promote existing highway commercial areas and new 
development in appropriate locations along the highway frontage and major roadways 
in Town.”

“4.9. Revitalization of the Highway 9 Commercial corridor shall be a Town priority in 
cooperation with the Special Areas on adjoining vacant or abandoned highway 
commercial properties. “

Municipal Development Plan Review 



Considerations for Council regarding highway commercial development: 

- Historically this area (including the land on the south side of Highway 9) has 
been dedicated to Highway commercial land uses and prioritized for highway
commercial investment due to proximity and access to the Highway 9. 

- Is it time to consider a shift in development priorities for a portion of this area, 
or does Council want to continue to prioritize this land for highway commercial 
development? 

Municipal Development Plan Review: 



Industrial Policies:

“5.6. Industrial development shall be encouraged to maintain a high standard of 
design, landscaping and screening of outdoor storage areas.”

“5.9. To promote the development of safe, aesthetically pleasing industrial areas by 

providing adequate access and appropriate buffering and screening for adjacent 

land uses” 

“5.10. The appropriateness of an industrial use or location will be evaluated with full 
consideration to its potential environmental impact and/or nuisances it may 
generate in relation to existing and future residential areas. New industries that may 
cause land use conflicts such as air pollution, odor or excessive noise should not be 
permitted within close proximity to residential areas.”

Municipal Development Plan Review: 



Land Use Impacts of Industrial development in this Location

Proposed development may have the potential to create odors:

➢ PRMS Recommendations: Include specific conditions on the Development 
Permit regarding odor control. This will allow enforcement measures should 
there be any odor issues in the future. 

Industrial development at entrances or gateway into Town (Town aesthetics)

➢ PRMS Recommendations: Ensure future development is appropriately 
screened from view with high quality materials and require a high standard 
of landscaping to ensure an aesthetically pleasing development when 
entering the Town of Hanna

Increased  truck traffic on Highway 9 and access road:

➢ PRMS Recommendations: Future developer should consult Alberta 
Transportation regarding access off Highway 9 before initiating the 
development permit process.

Developer is working on acquiring necessary environmental approvals through the 
Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act: 

➢ PRMS Recommendations: Ensure necessary approvals are in place prior to 
the operation of the facility 

Municipal Development Plan Review: 



➢ The proposed bylaws have been advertised and circulated in
accordance the Municipal Government Act, Section 606.

➢ Circulation letters were sent to adjacent landowners that may be
affected by the proposal both within the Town of Hanna and Special
Areas Board. The proposal was also posted in the newspaper. To date
(June 3rd, 2021) PRMS has not received any letters of opposition to the
proposed bylaws.

➢ Alberta Transportation Response:
“This proposed rezoning should have no significant impact on the highway
network therefore the department has no concerns with the rezoning. Future
development because of this rezoning does have the potential to affect the
highway network. Alberta Transportation (AT) will need to consider potential
access improvements to this parcel as well as roadside development setbacks
standards once AT receives a roadside development permit application.”

➢ An engagement session was also held on May 19th for Town residents
to attend and learn more about the proposed development. This
included a Q & A session with the potential developer.

Affected Party Circulations & Notifications 



➢ Council should consider whether this area should transition to also
support industrial land uses or if there is a desire to continue to
prioritize this area for highway commercial investment.

➢ Should council consider approval, appropriate development permit
conditions should be in place to ensure mitigation of potential offsite
impacts, and to maintain an aesthetically pleasing gateway into the
Town of Hanna.

Conclusion



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 10.01 
 

Item Title 
 

Bylaw 1016-2021 – Land Use Bylaw Amendment  
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council gives second reading to Bylaw 1016-2021, Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  
 
That Council gives third and final reading to Bylaw 1016-2021, Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  
 

Background 
 
The Town of Hanna has made an application to amend Land Use Bylaw No. #967-2012 Part VIII, The 
Land Use District Map, by re-designating portions of Plan 0511341, Block A, Lots 3-6 and Plan 
7810701, Block A, Lot 2, in the Town of Hanna, from Highway Commercial (HWY-C) to Industrial (I). 
This bylaw affects the properties located at 708 Highway 9 to 708D Highway 9. 
 
Council at the May 11, 2021, Regular Council Meeting gave first reading to Bylaw 1016-2021 Land Use 
Bylaw Amendment. First reading of this by-law amendment allowed the following to occur: 

• The Land Use Bylaw Amendment including the Public Hearing was advertised in the Hanna 
Herald on May 19, 26 and June 2nd issues. 

• Provide opportunities for anyone who feels they may be affected by this amendment to be heard 
by Council.  

• The residents in the immediate vicinity were notified of the application for amendment and the 
public hearing date and advised of the opportunity to present their comments on the request for 
amendment. 

 
The Municipal Government Act states that in order to make an amendment to the land use bylaw, the 
following steps must take place:  

 The bylaw must be given first reading.  
 A Public Hearing must be held to allow any person who claims that he will be affected 

prejudicially by the Bylaw, an opportunity to be heard by Council. 
 Notice of Public Hearing and Bylaw must be advertised at least once a week for 2 consecutive 

weeks in at least one newspaper or other publication circulating in the area or mailed or delivered 
to every resident in the area.  

 Notice of the public hearing must be mailed to the owner of the property, as well as to each 
owner of adjacent land.  (Adjacent land is defined as that which would be in direct contact with 
the property if not for a highway, road, river, stream or railway).  

 
Following the Public Hearing, Council can consider 2nd and 3rd reading of the Bylaw.   
 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\10.01 bylaw 1016-2021 - land use bylaw amendment .docx 

Communications 
 

N/A    
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
1. Municipal Government Act – Sections 230, 639, 640. 

 
Attachments 

 
1. Bylaw 1016-2021 – Land Use Amendment - Plan 0511341 & 7810701 Re-designation 
2. Alberta Transportation – Letter in response to the notice of land use re-designation 
3. Special Areas 2 – Letter in response to the notice of land use re-designation 

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



TOWN OF HANNA 
PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

BY-LAW 1016-2021 
 
 
 A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF HANNA, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO  
AMEND LAND USE BYLAW NO. 967-2012. 
 

WHEREAS pursuant to the provision of Section 639 of the Municipal 
Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, the Council of the Town of Hanna 
(hereinafter called the Council), has adopted Land Use Bylaw No. 967-2012; 
 

AND WHEREAS the Council deems it desirable to amend Land Use Bylaw No. 
967-2012; and 
  
 NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HANNA ENACTS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
PART l BYLAW TITLE 
 
1.1 This bylaw shall be known as “Land Use Amendment Bylaw”. 
 
 
PART ll GENERAL PROVISIONS  
 
2.1 Council hereby amends Land Use Bylaw No. 967-2012 as follows: 
 
In Part VIII, the Land Use District Map, re-designate Plan 0511341, Block A, Lots 3-6 and 
Plan 7810701, Block A, Lot 2, in the Town of Hanna, from Highway Commercial (HWY-C) 
to Industrial (I) as shown on the Schedule A below: 

 
 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1016-2021 
Page…2 
 

PART XII REVIEW AND ENACTMENT 
 
3.1 This bylaw shall come into effect as of the date of final reading. 
 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THIS 11th DAY OF MAY 2021. 
 
 
           

     Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
          
     Chief Administrative Officer 
     Kim Neill  
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING HELD THIS 8th DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 8th DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
 

 
READ A THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 8th DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
 
 
 
           

     Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
          
     Chief Administrative Officer 

      Kim Neill 
 





ifiVA
Special Areas Board

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

212— 2" d Avenue West, Box 820, Hanna, Alberta, Canada TOJ 1P0 Phone:( 403) 854- 5600 Fax:( 403) 854- 5527

June 3, 2021 Via Email: kneill@hanna. ca

Town of Hanna

P. O. Box 430

Hanna, AB TOJ 1P0

Attention: Kim Neill

Dear Mr. Neill:

Re:  Proposed Land Use Amendment

As per the letter received from the Palliser Regional Municipal Services dated May 28th, 2021, I

have no concerns with the proposed understanding that industrial uses with nuisance effects
extending beyond the site are discretionary within the Industrial District.

Please call me if you have any questions or concerns at ( 403) 854- 5623.

Sincerely,

Brett Richards

Development Officer

Special Area No. 2, Hanna

BR/ db

cc. T. Caskey

An agency of the Government of Alberta



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 10.02 
 

Item Title 
 

Bylaw 1017-2021 – Municipal Development Plan Amendment  
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council gives second reading to Bylaw 1017-2021, Municipal Development Plan Amendment.  
 
That Council gives third and final reading to Bylaw 1017-2021, Municipal Development Plan 
Amendment.    
 

Background 
 
The Town of Hanna has made an application to amend the Town of Hanna Municipal Development 
Plan.  Currently the Town of Hanna Municipal Development Plan identifies these lands legally described 
as Plan 0511341, Block A, Lots 3-6 and Plan 7810701, Block A, Lot 2, in the Town of Hanna (708 
Highway 9 to 708D Highway 9) as Hwy-Commercial and to align with the proposed amendment to the 
Land Use Bylaw these lands will be required to be amended to Hwy-Commercial/Industrial.    
   
Council at the May 11, 2021, Regular Council Meeting gave first reading to Bylaw 1017-2021 Municipal 
Development Plan Amendment. First reading of this by-law amendment allowed the following to occur: 

• The Municipal Development Plan Amendment including the Public Hearing was advertised in 
the Hanna Herald on May 19, 26 and June 2nd issues. 

• Provide opportunities for anyone who feels they may be affected by this amendment to be heard 
by Council.  

• The residents in the immediate vicinity were notified of the application for amendment and the 
public hearing date and advised of the opportunity to present their comments on the request for 
amendment. 

 
The Municipal Government Act states that in order to make an amendment to the Municipal 
Development Plan, the following steps must take place:  

 The bylaw must be given first reading.  
 A Public Hearing must be held to allow any person who claims that he will be affected 

prejudicially by the Bylaw, an opportunity to be heard by Council. 
 Notice of Public Hearing and Bylaw must be advertised at least once a week for 2 consecutive 

weeks in at least one newspaper or other publication circulating in the area or mailed or delivered 
to every resident in the area.  

 Notice of the public hearing must be mailed to the owner of the property, as well as to each 
owner of adjacent land.  (Adjacent land is defined as that which would be in direct contact with 
the property if not for a highway, road, river, stream or railway).  

 
Following the Public Hearing, Council can consider 2nd and 3rd reading of the Bylaw. 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\10.02 bylaw 1017-2021 - municipal development plan amendment .docx 

Communications 
 

N/A 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
Policy and/or Legislative Implications 

 
1. The Municipal Government Act – Sections 230, 639, 640.  

 
Attachments 

 
1. Bylaw 1017-2021 – Municipal Development Plan Amendment  

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



TOWN OF HANNA 
PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

BY-LAW 1017-2021 
 
 
 A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF HANNA, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO  
AMEND MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN BYLAW NO. 968-2013. 
 

WHEREAS pursuant to the provision of Section 632 of the Municipal 
Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, the Council of the Town of Hanna, 
(hereinafter called the Council), has adopted Municipal Development Plan Bylaw 968-
2013; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Council deems it desirable to amend Municipal Development 

Plan Bylaw No. 968-2013; and 
  
 NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HANNA ENACTS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 
PART l BYLAW TITLE 
 
1.1 This bylaw shall be known as “Municipal Development Plan Amendment Bylaw”. 
 
 
PART ll GENERAL PROVISIONS  
 
2.1 Council hereby amends Municipal Development Plan Bylaw 968-2013 as follows: 
 
On the Future Land Use Map (Schedule A), change a portion of the future land use map 
at the locations of Plan 0511341, Block A, Lots 3-6 and Plan 7810701, Block A, Lot 2 from 
“HWY Commercial” to “HWY Commercial/Industrial” as shown on the plan below:  

 

 



Town of Hanna 
Bylaw 1017-2021 
Page…2 
 

 
PART III REVIEW AND ENACTMENT 
 
3.1 This bylaw shall come into effect as of the date of final reading. 
 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THIS 11th DAY OF MAY 2021. 
 
           

     Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
          
     Chief Administrative Officer 
     Kim Neill  
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING HELD THIS 8th DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 8th DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
 

 
READ A THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 8th DAY OF JUNE 2021. 
. 
 
 
 
           

     Mayor Chris Warwick 
 
          
     Chief Administrative Officer 

      Kim Neill 
 



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

 
Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 11.00 
 

Item Title 
 

Council Reports & Roundtable 
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council accepts the Council Reports for information. 
 

Background 
 
This portion of the agenda allows Council members to provide written or verbal reports to update other 
members of Council with information resulting from meetings they have attended since the previous 
Council meeting.   
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information presented. 
 

Communications 
 
The highlights of the reports may be communicated through the Town of Hanna Social Media programs. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\11.00 council reports & roundtable .docx 

Attachments 
 
1. Mayor Warwick    
2. Councillor Deadlock    
3. Councillor Campion 
4. Councillor Jensen  
5. Councillor Beaudoin 
6. Councillor Olsen 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



 
COUNCIL REPORT 

Councillor Connie Deadlock – June 8, 2021 
 
 

Meeting:  Chamber 
Location:  Zoom 
Date & Time:  May 18, noon to 1pm 
 Business as usual 
      
Meeting:  GFL Public Engagement  
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time:  May 19, 6:30pm 
              
Meeting:  Chamber 
Location:  Zoom 
Date & Time:  May25, 7 pm 
 Business as usual 
 
Meeting:  Council Special Meeting (recessed) 
Location:  Zoom 
Date & Time:  May 26, 8:30 am 
 
Meeting:  Council Info Meeting  
Location:  Zoom 
Date & Time:  May 26, 8:30 am 
 
Meeting:  Council Special Meeting (resumed) 
Location:  Zoom 
Date & Time:  May 26, 7pm 
  
Future Meetings: 

June 8th, Council 
June 14th, CSB 
June 15, Chamber 
June 30, Council Info 

 



COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 
 
 
Council Date June 8, 2021 
Prepared by: Councillor Gerald Campion 
   
 
Meeting: Red Deer River Municipal Users Group  
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time: May 20, 2021   1:00 pm   
 
 Due to illness in hospital at Red Deer, alternate Larry Stickel sat in on the 

zoom meeting.  
 
 
Meeting: Council Information Session & Special Meeting  
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time: May 26, 2021   8:30 am & 7:00 pm 
 
 Good discussions and tough decisions made!  

 
 

 
Upcoming Meetings:  
 
June 15, 2021 Henry Kroeger Regional Water Services Commission  
 
June 16, 2021 Big Country Waste Management Commission  
 
June 30, 2021 Council Information Session  
 I will not be present for this meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 



 
COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 

 
 
Council Date: June 8, 2021   
Prepared by: Melanie Jensen  
 
  
May 20 – Hanna Interagency Meeting 
 
May 26 – Council Information Session 
                Hanna Wellness Network 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upcoming Meetings: 
 
June 14 – Hanna Municipal Library Board 
 
June 15 – Hanna Wellness Network 
 
June 30 – Council Information Session 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 
June 8, 2021 @ 6 pm 

Sandra Beaudoin 
 
Date  Meeting       Time  Method 
 
May 11 Town Council Meeting     6 pm  ZOOM 
  Tax Rate review.  
 
May 19 GFL Community Engagement    6:30 pm ZOOM 
Good presentation & decent attendance.  Owner of CORE also attended & introduced himself.  They 
sell some of GFL organic fertilizer through the Hanna office. 
 
May 26 Council Info Session     8:30 am ZOOM 
Final Tax Rate vote. 818 Studio & Cactus Corridor presentations full of interesting information. Town 
staff have worked well to adjust to the COVID transitions with working from home/remotely. 
 
May 31 Community Futures Investment mtg 
Review loan applications. 
 
June 1 Community Futures mtg     9 am  Conf Call 
Year End review. Performance report: Meridian supported 888 training & advisory services, 65 loans 
(55 loans stemming from COVID; 10 regular CF loans, creating/maintaining 92 jobs).  Online loan 
application ability was well utilized, Board Boot Camps hosted for non-profit groups, Municipal 
Leadership Master Class series.  Lots of work was done with workers from home who managed to 
transition well with potential & new clients.   
 
June 1 Community Futures Investment mtg   9 am  Conf Call 
Review loan application 
 
June 4 Hanna Medical Assoc mtg     8:30 am Clinic 
Financial Review with Peter from Endeavor Accounting 
 
Upcoming Meetings 

June 17  Community Futures Meeting AGM    9 am  Kindersley 
June 30 Council Info Session      8:30 am ZOOM? 
July 7  Palliser Economic Partnership    10:30 am Rosemary Hall 
 
Palliser Economic Development Partnership   No meeting this month 
Canadian Badlands No meetings   
Communities in Bloom has taken a year off. 
 



COUNCIL REPORTS & ROUNDTABLE 
 
 
Council Date: June 8, 2021 
Prepared by: Councillor Kyle Olsen  
 
 
Event: GFL Public Engagement 
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time: May 19, 6:30 PM 
 
Good info and good Q & A for a project that has been going for a long time. Nice to see 
some progress. 
 
 
Event: Council Info Session 
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time: May 26 8:30 AM 
 
Budget discussions, awesome progress from Cactus Corridor/Harvest Sky 
 
 
Event: Special Council Meeting 
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time: May 26 7:00 PM 
 
Set Municipal tax rate to same as 2020. 
 
 
Event: HLC - Insite Marketing Discussion 
Location: Zoom 
Date & Time: June 1 4:30 PM 
 
Postponed 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 12.00 
 

Item Title 
 

Correspondence 
 

Recommended Motion 
 

That Council accepts Correspondence items 12.01 – 12.16 for information. 
 

Background 
 

Council is provided with various items of correspondence at each meeting for information.   
Correspondence may be in the form of a letter, note, newsletter, report or meetings minutes.    Meeting 
minutes are most often from committees or boards that are affiliated with the Town but may not have 
an appointed representative. 
 
Correspondence items do not usually require a response from Council, however if there is an item that 
a Councillor would like to bring forward for action, a motion can be put on the floor at that time.   
 
Council members are encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification on any information presented. 
 

Communications 
 

Highlights of the correspondence reports may be communicated through the Town Social Media 
Programs. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\12.00 correspondence items.docx 

Attachments 
 

1. Minister of Municipal Affairs – 2021 MSI Funding Letter 
2. Alberta Japan Twinned Municipalities Association – 2021 Invoice & Save the Date 
3. Village of Rycroft – Minister of Justice – Support for RCMP Policing Service – May 21 
4. Cactus Corridor Newsletter 2021 05 
5. Town of Fahler – RCMP letter 
6. Town of Mayerthorpe – Letter of Support for RCMP 
7. AUMA Town South Update  
8. Marigold Library Systems Report  
9. Marigold Library Systems – Hanna Municipal Library – 20120 Value of Your Investment 
10. Marigold Library Systems – 2020 Annual Report 
11. Marigold Library Systems – New Building Update  
12. Prairie Land School Division – Board Highlights – May 25, 2021 
13. Smoky Lake County – Letter of Support for RCMP 
14. ID-9 – Letter of Support for RCMP 
15. Stand with Asians Coalition – Actions to Commemorate the 215 First Nations Children 
16. Alberta Visitor Information Program Discontinuation 

 
 

Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 
 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 





 

Alberta/Japan Twinned Municipalities Association 

 
 
Jerry Madsen 
Site 128, Comp.2, RR4 
Rocky Mtn House, AB 
T4T 2A4 
 
Dear Member; 
 
Please find enclosed an Invoice for the 2021 A/JTMA Membership. We are looking 
forward to your attendance at our AGM. Once again we are looking at a virtual 
meeting because of Covid restrictions so please mark September 19th 2021 at 2pm 
on your calendar for this meeting. More information will be forwarded at a later date. 
 
One very important item for this meeting is that all executive positions terms are up 
this year, the President and Vice president positions can still be filled with the 
present individuals as they can hold these positions for another two terms. The 
Secretary and Treasurer positions are both up so if you have any candidates please 
talk to them prior to the AGM. 
Taber has offered to host the 2022 AGM and Conference as they are not able to host 
in 2021 because of Covid. 
 
  
  
 
Yours truly 
 
 
Jerry Madsen 
Treasurer  
A/JTMA

 



 





 

Economic Development Newsletter 
What’s happening in the Cactus Corridor… 

 

            May 2021 
 

 

Driving New Business & Investment 
 
TransAlta: has announced they are proceeding with their Garden Plain Wind Project which will see construction 
north of Hanna. Cactus Corridor is supporting their project with local connections to help meet their construction 
and ongoing project requirements.  
 
For more information, please see their announcement: https://www.transalta.com/plants-operation/garden-plain/  
 
 
Building Remediation: Cactus is working with 3 commercial property 
owners in Hanna on possible remediation of old buildings in an effort 
to promote future development. Older properties in rural communities 
present a possible obstacle to development, as often the value of the 
property isn’t as high as the cost to remediate the property.  
 
Cactus is working with property owners to overcome this issue and 
move forward to clean up old sites and promote future development.  
 

 
 
Picking up the Climate Change Taskforce Work 
The many projects that were identified as part of the climate change taskforce work continue to move forward. 
Highlights of just a few of the projects: 
 
 

Community Development: both the Hanna & Youngstown 
community development projects are moving forward. 818 Studios 
is the consultant leading the projects with community stakeholder 
engagement. They have been to a farmers’ market in May and will 
be setting up shop next to the post office in June.  
 
Community development includes a main street revitalization 
component in both communities. Options are being presented in an 
effort to gather feedback from residents on what they’d like to see; 
make sure to have your voice heard.  

 
 
 
Regional Marketing: the regional marketing initiative is moving full steam ahead. 
Alignment of our partners (Hanna, Youngstown, Special Areas and the Hanna Learning 
Centre) has started with re-branding and strategy components. Coming soon will be 
some new logos, websites and marketing materials. Once that’s complete, we will be 
ready to launch the campaign to boost our efforts to attract business, residents and 
tourists. 
 

https://www.transalta.com/plants-operation/garden-plain/


 
Irrigation Projects: a new partnership was announced with the  
Government of Alberta, the Canada Infrastructure Bank and the  
Special Areas to continue work on the projects that were started  
in 2020. This has the potential to help move irrigation forward  
in the region. More to come.  

 
 

 
Agricultural Center: Preliminary work on the project is complete and has identified a few elements to continue to 
pursue as possible pieces in the ag center including:  
 

• Livestock Hub components: animal therapy, animal training, equine boarding, veterinary services, lab 
services, animal nutrition 

• Educational components: partnerships with local schools and post secondary schools 

• Research facilities 

• Riding and Event Center: indoor riding arena 

• Food Production 
 
Work will continue on a business case to see what is feasible to pursue as a final option.  
 
Funding for these projects is provided by Western Economic Development (Government of Canada) and the projects 
should be completed by the fall so opportunities can move forward. 
 
 

 
Attracting Residents 
Land Development: Cactus has engaged with local realtors and builders to 
attract new residents to the region. We are actively pursuing residential 
housing development in Hanna and Youngstown, including new homes on 
existing lots.   

 

 
 
Promoting Tourism 
Tourism Plan: We are working with other groups such as Return to Rural, Western Economic Development (federal 
government), Travel Alberta and Travel Drumheller to make tourism a regional priority.  
 

Supporting Stakeholders in the Region 
Business Hub: Cactus continually works with the Business Hub in Hanna on a number of initiatives and regards the 
Hub as key resource driving economic development forward. 

 
Development Incentive Program: Youngstown has passed its development incentive package. If you’re thinking of 
upgrading a house or business, check out the incentive policy and see if it can help your project.  
 
Regular Communications: Cactus engages on a regular basis with local stakeholders such as the Business Hub, Town 
of Hanna and Special Areas to share best practices, update plans and communicate opportunities. 
 
 

Cactus Corridor Economic Development Corporation 
For more information contact 
Mark Nikota, Economic Development Manager at 403-854-0589 or mark.nikota@cactuscorridor.com  



inr: d~f FALHER 
"df-ontj Capita[ of Canada" 

May 20, 2021 

Honourable Kaycee Madu 
Minister of Justice and Solicitor General 
424 Legislature Building 
10800-97 A venue 
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 286 

RE: Town of Falher Support for the RCMP 

Dear Minister Madu, 

This letter is presented as a token of support on behalf of the Town of Falher towards the Royal 
Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) and also as a motion of opposition to the Provincial Government's 
recent proposal for an Alberta Provincial Police Force. 

Upon review of information made available by AUMA it has become abundantly clear to our entire 
council that blindly forging forward would come at an enormous cost to our province, and specifically 
its residents. The newly established Police Funding Model has already delivered a hit to small rural urban 
municipal budgets with a relatively small impact felt in terms of day to day deliverables in our 
communities. Continuing with a Provincial Police Force would come at an exorbitant cost with no 
assurance with a benefit in service. 

Just today, S&P Global Ratings has downgraded Alberta's credit rating from 'A+' to 'A' while cautioning 
that additional downgrades in the near future are very possible if new fiscal measures are not adopted 
in a post-COVID 19 Alberta. The exploration of an Alberta based Police Force was merely financial as 
there is no evidence suggesting a dissatisfaction with the quality of service offered by the RCMP to the 
magnitude that would warrant such an expense. To ask any and all residents of this province to fund 
such an ill-advised endeavour can only be viewed as an un-sound decision based on an act of ignoring 
facts, and more importantly, the voice of Albertans. 

With the Provincial Government's reduction into MSI funding over the next few years and considering 
the infrastructure maintenance investments that all Canadian municipalities face over the coming 
years, local government budgets are already being stretched beyond their limits. Where exactly does 
the Provincial government envision the funding of a Provincial Police Service coming from? 
Undoubtedly, they will ask municipalities to pay, ultimately forcing local councils to play 'bad cop' by 
increasing municipal taxes in order to fund Provincial downloading. It is our opinion that the Provincial 
government needs to seriously re-evaluate its priorities. 

P.O. BOX 155, FALHER, AB TOH 1M0 TELEPHONE: (780) 837-2247 FAX: (780) 837-2647 EMAIL: admin@falher.ca 



The Town of Falher council stands with: 

• The 65% of respondents to the Fair Deal Panel survey that voiced opposition to a Provincial 
Police Force. 

• The County of Paintearth No. 18 
• The County of St.Paul 
• Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 
• Town of Didsbury 
• Town of Magrath 
• Town of Edson 
• Village of Hill Spring 
• Town of Morinville 
• Town of Redcliff 
• Village of Rycroft 
• Any and all other citizens, municipalities, and organizations who have not voiced their opinions, 

yet. 

The Provincial Government continually encourages (and legislatively mandates) that municipal 
governments work together in a cohesive manner, perhaps they should take a page from their own 
book rerouting the funds allocated for research of an Alberta Police Service towards building stronger 
relationships with the RCMP and with Federal Partners. 

Sincerely, 

Donna Buchinski 
Mayor 

cc: The Honourable Jason Kenney, Premier 
The Honourable Ric Mciver, Minister of Municipal Affairs 
Rachel Notley, Leader of the Official Opposition 
Todd Loewen, MLA Central Peace-Notley 
AUMA Members 
RMA Members 

























































































N:\Plrd-Admin\Board Information\Board Meetings\2020-2021\Board Highlights\Board Highlights May 25, 2021.docx 

 

Board of Trustees Meeting May 25, 2021 
 
 

In-year Funding Requests 

The Board of Trustees approved video conference and IT upgrades, custodial and maintenance 
equipment, division housing upgrades and furniture replacement for Berry Creek Community School, 
Altario and Consort Schools. 
 
2021-2022 Budget 

The 2021-2022 Operating and Capital budget were passed unanimously by the Prairie Land Board of 
Trustees on May 25, 2021.  An operating deficit of $550,000 is expected as well as board funded capital 
assets of $627,500 for vehicles and equipment with an additional $380,000 relating to the new Delia 
School rebuild to provide extra space, bleachers and upgraded air handlers. 
 
Two new schools will be coming on-stream for the next school year; Al-Amal Academy and Prairie 
Land Online Academy. It is also expected that the International Student Program will gain momentum 
in the upcoming year.  With the new schools, programs and augmentation of some existing supports 
the division expects to add 16.20 certified teachers and 25.5 additional support staff.  
 
Teaching staff for the two new schools total 8.6 FTE while 3.3 FTE will supplement Berry Creek 
Community School and Hope Christian Online School, due to enrolment demands. The remaining 
teaching FTE will focus on literacy and numeracy as well as providing support for new start-up; schools 
and initiatives. 
 
The majority of support staff will be added to address the recent literacy and numeracy shortfalls that 
have been identified over the past year and will address increasing needs of students in the high needs 
categories. 
 
Prairie Land looks forward to a successful year of growth within the division. 
 
2021-2024 Education Plan 

The Board of Trustees passed a motion to approve the 2021-2024 Education Plan. This document was 
developed as a result of the community assurance meetings, in addition to staff, public and student 
surveys.  The Board would like to thank the committee members and the school communities for their 
input and work into the assurance framework.  Please visit the Prairie Land website at www.plrd.ab.ca 
for it and any further information that you may require. 
 
 
For additional information please contact: Cam McKeage, Superintendent of Schools, Prairie Land 
Public School Division  403.854.4481 







 

DAVE SCHEBEK, CHAIR 
Improvement District No. 9, Banff National Park 

daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca 
PO Box 58, Lake Louise AB | TOL 1E0 

 

 

 

May 31st, 2021 
Honourable Kaycee Madu 

Minister Justice and Solicitor General 

Office of the Minister 

#424 Legislature Building, 10800 97 Ave, Edmonton AB T5K 2B6 

 

Dear Minister Madu, 

 

Re: Alberta Provincial Police Service (APPS) 
  
At the Regular Council meeting for Improvement District No. 9 on May 13th, 2021, Council reviewed the plan proposed by the 
Government of Alberta to replace the RCMP in Alberta with a Provincial Police Service.  Please be advised that the Municipal Council 
for ID9 is strongly opposed to the creation of this proposal. After reviewing the Fair Deal Panel's Report to Government (as well as 
the many letters currently circulating from Municipal elected officials) ID9 Council is voicing its firm opposition to the APPS. There 
are several particularly concerning items identified in the Fair Deal Panel's report, namely:  

• the Fair Deal Panel's recommendation to proceed with developing a proposal for a Provincial Police Force, despite only 35% 
of Albertans believing the police force would contribute to the desired outcome of helping Alberta better assert itself with 
the Canadian federation. 

• Provincial and municipal governments possibly absorbing $112.4 million policing costs currently covered by the federal 
government (which would be in addition to the increasing policing costs incurred by municipalities under the Police Funding 
Model). 

 

Furthermore, and perhaps most importantly, we have an excellent relationship with our local RCMP detachment and feel no need to 
replace them with a Provincial force. The RCMP in Lake Louise and Banff have always been responsive to community needs and 
feedback, and have consistently delivered professional, quality public safety services in our communities.  In addition, ongoing 
collaboration between both Detachments and ID9 Council has resulted in a positive and adaptive presence in the region.  

We have not been provided with adequate proof that the formation of the APPS would result in better outcomes for Albertans, 
especially when considering the increased costs to our rate payers.  ID9 Council is urging the Government of Alberta to listen to 
Municipal Leaders as well as the results of the Fair Deal Panel’s report and shift efforts to improving RCMP relationships and 
resources in the Province.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with any comments or concerns.   

Respectfully, 

 
 
Chair Dave Schebek 

CC: Honourable Jason Kenney, Premier 

MLA Miranda Rosin 

AUMA & RMA Memberships 

  

mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca






Visitor Services Program Update

Cecilia Goncalves Neath <Cecilia.Goncalves@gov.ab.ca>
Thu 13-May-21 4:26 PM

Good Afternoon AVIPs,
 
I know many of you are setting plans in motion for the summer season. I would like to take this
opportunity to inform you of important changes coming to the Visitor Services program
delivered by the Ministry of Jobs, Economy and Innovation (JEI).
 
As part of Alberta’s Recovery Plan, Travel Alberta will become a full destination management
organization, assuming programs and services previously provided by JEI, including destination
and product development, research and visitor services. To support this new role, funding to
Travel Alberta has been increased by $22 million annually for the next three years starting in
2021-22. The Travel Alberta Act will be amended to update Travel Alberta’s mandate and these
legislative changes are expected to pass in the Legislature later this spring. Amending the Act
will provide the opportunity to clarify and outline Travel Alberta’s mandate as soon as possible.
These changes will allow the transition to occur sooner, supporting tourism recovery and
establishing a strong path to growth.
 
As part of the transition, the Alberta Visitor Information Program (AVIP) will be discontinued.
Travel Alberta is developing resources to support visitor information services that will be
available this spring on industry.travalalberta.com. The nature of visitor services is evolving and
Travel Alberta is exploring the best opportunities for engaging with visitors, both in person and
virtually.
 
As you may be aware, JEI is developing a 10-year Tourism Strategy in collaboration with Travel
Alberta to position the sector for recovery and growth to attain the goal of doubling tourism
revenue in Alberta by 2030. This strategy will support the recovery of the tourism industry which
was devastated by COVID-19.
 
It has been a great pleasure working with all of you in supporting and diversifying visitor
information services in Alberta.  We look forward to working with you in new and different ways
to grow the visitor economy in Alberta.
 
Warmest Regards,
Cecilia
 
Cecilia Goncalves Neath | Regional Development Officer – South Region
Regional and Industy Relations
Jobs, Economy and Innovation
Phone: 403-297-3355 | Cell: 780-919-7417 | cecilia.goncalves@gov.ab.ca
 

 

Classifica�on: Protected A

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alberta.ca%2Frecovery-plan.aspx&data=04%7C01%7CCecilia.Goncalves%40gov.ab.ca%7C52563047d4fc45096cd908d915852f7a%7C2bb51c06af9b42c58bf53c3b7b10850b%7C0%7C0%7C637564484028452799%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=SXsmUHB9qI9auyePsKQWztWEeBumGYAgb%2B2HaGgKnBg%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Findustry.travelalberta.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CCecilia.Goncalves%40gov.ab.ca%7C52563047d4fc45096cd908d915852f7a%7C2bb51c06af9b42c58bf53c3b7b10850b%7C0%7C0%7C637564484028452799%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=xX%2FROb52gaD7xisz9K2w5rg2e9i9QjL2AfsK3ua4dS8%3D&reserved=0
mailto:cecilia.goncalves@gov.ab.ca
http://www.alberta.ca/


 

Town of Hanna    Council Agenda 
Background Information and Request for Decision 

Date: June 8, 2021        Agenda Item No: 13.00 
 

Item Title 
 

Closed Session – Legal Matter  
 

Recommended Motion 
 
That Council move to Closed Session at  _______  p.m. to discuss agenda items 

13.1   Land Matter as per FOIP Section 16 
13.2 Land Matter as per FOIP Section 16.  

 
That Council move to Regular Session at _______ p.m. 
 

Background 
 
The Municipal Government Act (MGA) says that a meeting or part of a meeting is considered to be 
closed to the public when  
(a) any members of the public are not permitted to attend the entire meeting or part of the meeting,  
(b) the council, committee or other body holding the meeting instructs any member of the public to 

leave the meeting or part of the meeting, other than for improper conduct, or  
(c) the council, committee or other body holding the meeting holds any discussions separate from the 

public during the meeting or part of the meeting.  
 
Section 197 of the MGA states that councils and council committees must conduct their meetings in 
public unless the matter to be discussed is within one of the exceptions to disclosure in Division 2 of 
Part 1 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy (FOIP) (s. 16 to 29). This section also 
indicates that a council or council committee must pass a resolution stating the reason and the section 
of FOIP that applies before closing all or any part of a meeting to the public. 
 
FOIP outlines the items that would allow a council to close a council meeting, which include matters 
where a public disclosure could be harmful to:  
• Third party business interests; (s. 16)  
• Third party personal privacy; (s. 17)  
• Individual or public safety; (s. 18 and 19)  
• Law enforcement; (s. 20)  
• Intergovernmental relations; (s. 21, 22, 23 and 24) and  
• Economic or other interests (s. 25, 26, 27, 28 and 29).  
 
Public bodies should not:  
• Reveal confidential employee evaluations; or  
• Disclose local public body confidences, or advice from officials; or  
• Disclose information that is subject to any kind of legal privilege.  
 



 
 

w:\11-05 council meeting documents\background information\2021\06 june 8\13.00 closed session.docx 

For example, a discussion regarding the employment of an individual should be held in-camera to 
protect the privacy of that individual.   Also, preliminary meetings with developers (at their request/or 
council’s discretion) describing a new land use development should be held in a closed session (s. 16 
of FOIP).  
 
The required motion to move to closed session, including the exceptions to disclosure applicable under 
FOIP is provided above. 
 
The only motion allowed during closed session is a motion to move to regular session.  A 
recommended motion is provided above.   
 

Communications 
 
N/A 
 

Financial Implications 
 

 
 

Policy and/or Legislative Implications 
 
N/A 
 

Attachments 
 

 
Reviewed and Approved for Submission to Council 

 
      Prepared By:  ___________________________ 
         Director of Corporate Services 

 
      Financial Review: ____________________________ 
         Director of 

______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

Operating: N/A Capital Cost: N/A 
Budget Available:  Budget Available:  

Unbudgeted:  Unbudgeted Costs:  
Source of Funds:  Source of Funds:  


	02.00 Agenda June 8, 2021
	05.00 Meeting Minutes
	05.01 Minutes May 11, 2021 Regular Meeting
	05.02 Minutes May 26, 2021 Special Meeting
	05.03 Minutes May 26, 2021 Information Meeting

	06.01 Accounts Payable
	06.02 Statement of Revenue & Expense
	06.02.1 Statement of Revenue & Expense -May 2021

	06.03 Budget Overview
	06.03.1 Budget Overview - May 2021

	08.00 Senior Administrative Officials 
	08.01 Chief Administrative Officer
	08.03 Director of Community Services
	08.03.1 Canada Day Events
	08.03.2 Epic Adventures 2021 Brochure

	08.04 Director of Protective Services
	08.05 Director of Public Works

	09.01 Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision & Development Appeal Board -Appointment
	09.01.1 Palliser Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Apppeal Board  Agreement

	09.02 Council Code of Conduct - Complaint
	09.02.1 Letter and material from Cory Ashley dated May 18, 2021
	09.02.2 Bylaw 994-2018 Council Code of Conduct
	09.02.3 Bylaw 964-2012 Anti-Bullying Bylaw

	09.03 Coal Development - Eastern Slopes
	09.03.1 Town of High River - Proposed Alberta Coal Policy

	09.04 COVID-19 Operating Plan Update
	10.00 Agenda Public Hearing Bylaws 1016-2021 & 1017-2021
	10.00.1 PRMS Presentation - Bylaws 1016-2021 1017-2021

	10.01 Bylaw 1016-2021 - Land Use Bylaw Amendment 
	10.01.1 Bylaw 1016-2021 Land Use Bylaw Amendment
	10.01.2 Alberta Transportation - Letter in response to notice of re-designation
	10.01.3 Special Areas - Letter in response to notice of re-designation

	10.02 Bylaw 1017-2021 - Municipal Development Plan Amendment 
	10.02.1 Bylaw 1017-2021 Municipal Development Plan Amendment

	11.00 Council Reports & Roundtable 
	11.02 Councillor Deadlock
	11.03 Councillor Campion
	11.04 Councillor Jensen
	11.05 Councillor Beaudoin
	11.06 Councillor Olsen

	12.00 Correspondence Items
	12.01 Minister of Municipal Affairs - Town of Hanna 2021 MSI Funding Letter
	12.02 AJTMA-Invoice 2021 - Save the Date
	12.03 Village of Rycroft - Minister of Justice - Support for RCMP Policing Service May 21
	12.04 Cactus Corridor Newsletter 2021 05
	12.05 Town of Falher - Letter of Support for  RCMP
	12.06 Town of Mayerthorpe - Letter of Support for RCMP
	12.07 AUMA Towns South Update
	12.08 Marigold Library Systems Report
	12.09 Marigold Library Systems - Hanna Municipal Library - 2020 Value of Your Investment
	12.10 Marigold Library Systems - 2020 Annual Report
	12.11 Marigold Libray Systmes - New Building Update
	12.12 PLSD Board Highlights May 25 2021
	12.13 Smoky Lake County - Letter of Support for RCMP
	12.14 ID 9 - Letter of Support for RCMP
	12.15 Stand With Asians Coalition - Actions to Commemorate the 215 First Nations Children
	12.16 Alberta Visitor Information Program Discontinuation

	13.00 Closed Session



